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% NORWEB plc COMPANIES HOUSE 04100

(incorporated with limited lability in England)
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U.S.$3,000,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Notes issued by North West Water Finance PLC
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

NORTH WEST WATER LIMITED
{incorporated with imited fiability in Englang)

On 13 October, 1898, United Utifities PLC, NORWER pic and North Wast Water Finance PLC established a U.S.$2,000,000,000 Euro
Medium Term Note Frogramme {the "Programme”). On 5 Qctober, 1999 the maximum aggregate nominal amount of Notes which
may be cutstanding under the Programme was increased from U.S,$2,000,000,000 to U.5.$3,000,000,000. This Cffering Circular
supersedes any previous Offering Circulars issued in respect of the Programme. Any Notes fas defined below) Issued under the
Frogramme on or after the date of this Offering Circular are issued subject to the provisions described herein. This does not affect any
Notes already in issue.

Under the Programme, United Utilities PLC, NORWEB plc and Narth West Water Finance PLC (*NWW") {each an “Issuer” and
together the “lssuers”) may from time to time issue nates (the “Notes™ denominated in any gurrency agreed between the relevant
lzsuer and the relevant Dealer {as defined below.

The payment of all amounts payable in respect of Notes issued by MWW wilt be unconditionally and irevocably guaranteed by North
West Water Limited {the *Guarantor™).

The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding under the Programme will not exceed
U.S.$3,000,000,000 {or its equivalent in other currencies calculated as described in the Programme Agreement describied herein),
subject to increase as described herein.

The Notes may be issued on a continuing basis to one or more of the Deaters specified under “Summnary of the Programme” and any
additional Dealer appointed under the Programme from time to time (each a "Dealer” and together the “Dealers”), which appointment
may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis. References in this Offering Cireular 1o the “refevant Dealer” shatt, in the case of an
issue of Notes being (or intended to be) subscribed by more than cne Dealer, be to all Dealers agreeing to purchase such Notes.
Application has been made to the Financial Services Autherity in its capacity as the UK Listing Authority (the “UKLA") for Notes issued
during the pericd of 12 months from the date of this Offering Circular to be admitied to the Official List maintained by the UKLA (the
“Cfficial List™} and to the London Stock Exchange ple (the “London Stock Exchange™) for sugh Notes to be admitted to traging on the
London Stock Exchange {which together, under the Listing Rules of the UKLA, will constitute official listing on the London Stock
Exchange). Notice of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes, interest (if any) payable in respect of Notes, the issue price of Notes and
any other terms and conditions not conjained herein which are applicabis to each Tranche {as defined under “Terms and Conditions of
the Notes™) of Notes will be set out in a pricing supptement (the “Pricing Supplement”) which, with respect to Notes to be listed on the
Official List and admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange, will be delivered 1o Listing Applications at the UKLA and 10 the
Londen Stock Exchange on or before the date of issue of the Notes of such Tranche.

The Programme provides that Notes may be listed on such other or further stock exchange(s) as may be agreed between the relevant
Issuer, the Guarantor {where the relevant lssuer is NWW) and the relevant Dealer, The Issuers may also issue unlisted Notes. This
Offering Circuler has not been submitted to the clearance procedures of the Commission des Qpérations de Boawrse (the “COB™ and
has not been registered by the COB. it is a requirement that, prior to the fisting of any Notes on the Paris Bourse, the COB approve this
Offering Circular and evidence such approval by issuing a registration number.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplerment, Notes to be issued under the Programme by United Utilities PLC with
an initial maturity of one year or less will be rated P-2 by Moody’s Investors Service Limited {*Moody’s") and A-2 by Standard & Poor's
Ratings Services, a division of the McGraw Hill Companies Inc. (*Standard & Poor’'s”) and Notes with an initial maturity of more than
one year will be rated A3 by Moody's and BBB+ by Standard & Poor's. Unfess otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, Notes to be issued under the Programme by NORWEB ple and NWW with an initial maturity of one year or less will be
rated P-1 by Moody’s and A-2 by Standard & Pogr’'s and Notes with an initial maturity of more than one year will be rated A2 by
Moody's and A- by Standard & Poor’s, Notes issued under the Programime may be rated or unrated. Where an issue of Notes is rated,
its rating will not necessarily be the sarme as the rating assigned to Notes issued under the Programme. A credit rating is not a
recommendation to buy, seft or hold securities and may be subject 10 revision, suspension or withdrawal at any time by the relevant
rating organisation.

The relevant lssuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) and the Trustee (as defined below) may agree with any Dealer
that Notes rmay be issued in a form not contemplated by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes herein, in which event (in the case of
Notes to be kisted on the Official List and to be admitted to trading on the Londorn Stock Exchange only) supplementary listing
%al;ﬁcu[ars Qr fgrtg}er listing particulars, if appropriate, will be made available which will describe the effect of the agreement reached in
relation to such Naotes.

Arranger
Deutsche Bank
Dealers
ABN AMRO Credit Suisse First Boston
Deutsche Bank J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
Tokyo-Mitstibishi International plc UBS Warburg

The date of thie Offering Circutar is 4 October 2000
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Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor accepts responsibility for the information contained in the Listing
Particulars {gs defined below). To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Issuers and the Guarantor
{each having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in the
Listing Particulars is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of
such information.

Copies of this Offering Circular, which comprises the listing particulars approved by the UKLA as required
by the Financial Services Act 1986 (the “Listing Particulars™) in refation to Notes listed on the Official List
and admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange and issued during the period of 12 months from
the date of this Offering Circular, have been delivered for ragistration to the Registrar of Companies in
England and Wales as required by section 149 of that Act. Copies of each Pricing Supplement {in the case
of Notes to be listed on the Official List) will be available from FT Business Research Centre, operated by FT
Electronic Fublishing at Fitzroy House, 13-15 Epworth Street, London EC2A 4DL and from the specified
office set out below of each of the Paying Agents (as defined below).

This Offering Circular is to be read in conjunction with ail documents which are deemed 1o be incorporated
herain by reference (see “Documents Incorporated by Reference” below) (provided, however, that such
incorporated documents do not form part of the Listing Particulars). This Offering Circular shall, save as
specified herein, be read and construed on the basis that such documents are so incorporated and form
part of this Offering Circular but not part of the Listing Particulars.

Neither the Dealers nor the Trustee have independently verified the information contained herein.
Accordingly, no representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility
or liabifity is accepted by the Dealers or the Trustee as to the accuracy or complateness of the informiation
contained or incorporated in this Offering Circular or any other information provided by the Issuers in
connection with the Programme. Neaither the Dealers nor the Trustee accept any liability in relation to the
information contained or incorporated by reference in this Offering Circular or any other informaticon
provided by any lssuer or the Guarantor in connection with the Programme.

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuers or the Guarantor to give any information or to make any
representation not contained in or not consistent with this Offering Circular or any other information
supplied in connection with the Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or
representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of the
Dealers or the Trustee.

Neither this Offering Circular nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any
Notes {j} is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (ij) should be considered as a
recommendation by the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of the Dealers or the Trustee that any recipient of this
Offering Circular or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Notes should
purchase any Notes, Each investor contemplating purchasing any Notes should make its own independent
investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the
relevant Issuer and/or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor. Neither this Offering Circular nor
any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the issue of any Notes constitutes an
offer or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of the Dealers or the Trustee to any
person to subscribe for or to purchase any Notes.

Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Notes shall in any
circumstances imply that the information contained herein concering the Issuers or the Guarantor is
correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information suppiied in connection with
the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the
same. The Dealers and the Trustee expressly do not undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of
the Issuers and/or the Guarantor during the life of the Programime or to advise any investor in the Notes of
any information coming to their attention. Investors should review, inter alia, the most recently published
audited annual financial statements and, if published later, the most recently published interim financial
statements (if any) of the lssuers and/or the Guarantor when deciding whether or not to purchase any
Notes.

The Notes are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and rmay not be offered, sold or delivered within the
United States or its possessions or 10 United States persons, except in certain transactions permitied by
U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Intemnal
Revenue Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.




This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer to sel or the soficitation of an offer to buy any Notes in any
jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawiul to make the offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. The
distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by law in certain
jurisdictions. The issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers and the Trustee do not represent that this Offering
Circular may be lawfully distributed, or that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any
appiicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available
thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular, no
action has been taken by the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers or the Trustee (save for the approval of this
document as listing particulars by the UKLA and delivery of copies of this document to the Registrar of
Companies in England and Wales) which would permit a public offering of any Notes or distribution of this
document in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no Notes may be
offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Offering Circular nor any advertisement or other
offering material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will
result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations and the Dealers have represented that all
offers and sales by them will be made on the same terms. Persons into whose possession this Offering
Circutar or any Notes may come must inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the
distribution of this Offering Circular and the offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are restrictions on
the distribution of this Offering Gircular and the offer and saie of Notes in the United States, the United
Kingdom, Japan and Germany, see “Subscription and Sale”.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Issuers and the
Guarantor (where the retevant issuer is NWW) and the terms of the Notes being offered, including the merits
and risks involved. The Notes have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission or any other securities commission or other regulatory authority in the United
States, nor have the foregoing authorities approved this Offering Circular or confirmed the accuracy of

determined the adequacy of the information contained in this Offering Circular. Any representation to the
confrary is unfawful,

None of the Dealers, the Issuers, the Guarantor or the Trustee makes any representation to any investor in
the Notes regarding the legality of its investment under any applicable laws. Any investor in the Notes
should be able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Notes for an indefinite period of time.

All references in this Offering Circular to “U.S. dollars”, “U1.8.$" and “$" refer to United States dollars, to
“Sterting” and “£" refer 10 pounds sterling and 10 "euro™ and “€" refer 1o the currency introduced at the
start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the

European Community, as amended by the Treaty on European Union and as amended by the Treaty of
Amsterdam.

In connection with the issue and distribution of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer (if any)
disciosed as the stabilising manager in the applicable Pricing Supplement may over-allot or
effect transactions which stabilise or maintain the market price of the Notes of the Series (as
defined below} of which such Tranche forms part at a level which might not otherwise prevail.
Such stabilising, if commenced, may be disconfinued at any time.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents published or issued from time to time after the date hereof shall be deemed to be
incorporated in, and to form part of, this Offering Circular (provided, however, that such incorporated
documents do not form a part of the Listing Particulars):

(@) the most recently published audited consoiidated and non-consolidated statutory annual financial
statements and, if published iater, the most recently published interim consclidaied and non-
consolidated financial statements (if any) of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor; and

{o) all supplements or amendments to this Offering Circutar circulated by the Issuers and the Guarantor
from time to time,

save that any statement contained herein or in a document which is deemed to be incorporated by
reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Offering Circular (but
not the Listing Particulars) to the extent that a statement contained in any such subsequent document
which is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such earlier statement
{(whether expressly, by implication or ctherwise). Any staternent so modified or superseded shall not be
deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Offering Circular.

The Issuers and the Guarantor will provide, without charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Offering
Circular has been delivered, upon the request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents
deemed to be incorporated herein by reference unless such documents have been modified or superseded
as specified above. Requests for such documents should be directed fo any of the Issuers or the Guarantor
at their respective offices set out at the end of this Offering Circular. In addition, such documents will be
available free of charge from the office of the London Listing Agent for Notes admitted to the Official List.

The Issuers and the Guarantor have undertaken to the Dealers in the Programme Agreement (as defined in

“Subscription and Sale”} to comply with sections 147 and 149 of the Financial Services Act 1986, as
amended.

If the terms of the Programme are modified or amended in a manner which would make this Offering
Circular, as supplemented, inaccurate or misleading, a new offering circular will be prepared.




SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The foliowing surmmary does hot purport to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by,
- the remainder of this Offering Circular and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Tranche
of Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement. Words and expressions defined in "Form of the Notes™ and
“Terms and Conditions of the Notes” below shall have the same meanings in this summary.

Issuers: United Utilities PLC
NORWESB plc
North West Water Finance PLC

Guarantor in respect of North West Water |imited
Notes issued by North West
Water Finance PLC:

Description: Euro Medium Term Note Programme
Arranger: Deutsche Bank AG London
Dealers: ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe} Limited

Deutsche Bank AG London

J.P. Morgan Securities Lid.

Tokyo-Mitsubishi International plc

UBS AG, acting through its business group UBS Warburg

and any other Dealers appointed in accordance with the Programme
Agresment.

Certain Restrictions: Each issue of Notes dencminated in a currency in respect of which
particular laws, guidelines, reguiations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which
comply with such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or
reporting reguirements from time {o time (see “Subscription and
Sale") including the following restrictions applicable at the date of this
Offering Circular.

Swiss Francs

Issugs of Notes denominated in Swiss francs or carrying a Swiss
franc-related element with a maturity of more than one year (cther than
Notes privately placed with a single investor with no publicity) will be
effected in compiiance with the relevant regulations of the Swiss
National Bank based on article 7 of the Federal Law on Banks and
Savings Banks of 8 November, 1934 (as amended) and article 15 of
the Federal Law on Stock Exchanges and Securities Trading of
24 March, 1985 in connection with article 2, paragraph 2 of the
Ordinance of the Federal Banking Commission an Stock Exchanges
and Securifies Trading of 2 December, 1996. Under the said
regulations, the relevant Dealer or, in the case of a syndicated issue,
the lead manager {the “Swiss Dealer”}, must be a bank domiciled in
Switzerland (which includes branches or subsidiaries of a foreign bank
located in Switzeriand) or a securities dealer duly licensed by the Swiss
Federal Banking Commission pursuant to the Federal Law on Stock
Exchanges and Securities Trading of 24 March, 1985, The Swiss
Dealer must report certain details of the relevant transaction to the
Swiss National Bank no later than the Issue Date of the relevant Notes.

Sterling

Issues of Notes denominated in Sterling shall comply with all
applicable laws and regulations (as amended from time to time) of
United Kingdom authorities. See “Banking Act 1987 (Exempt
Transactions) Regulations 1997 under “General Information”.




Trustee:

Issuing and Principal
Paying Agent:

Programme Size:

Distribution:

Currencies:

Redenomination:

Maturities:

Issue Price:

Form of Notes:

Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Notes:

Index Linked Notes:

The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c.

Citibank, N.A.

Up to U.8.$3,000,000,000 in nominal amount (or its equivatent in
other currencies calculated as described in the Programme
Agreement} outstanding at any time. The Issuers thay increase the
amount of the Programme in accordance with the terms of the
Programme Agreement.

Notes may be disiributed by way of private or pubiic placement and in
each case on a syndicated or non-syndicated basis.

Subject to any applicable legal or reguiatory restrictions, any currency
agreed betwesn the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

The applicable Pricing Supplement may provide that certain Notes
may be redenorminated in euro. The relevant provisions applicable to
any such redenomination are contained in Condition 5.

Such maturities as may be agreed between the relevant issuer and the
relevant Dealer, subject to such minimum or maximum maturities as
may be allowed or required from time to time by the relevant central
bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable io the
relevant lssuer or the relevant Specified Currency.

Notes may be issued on a fully-paid or a partly-paid basis and at an
issue price which is at par or at a discount to, or premium over, par.

The Notes will be issued in bearer form as described in “Form of the
Notes".

Fixed interest will he payable on such date or dates as may be agreed
between the relevant lssuer and the relevant Dealer and on
redemption and will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count
Fraction as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the
relevant Dealer.

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest at a rate determined:

{ on the same basis as the floating rate under a notional interest
rate swap ftransaction in the relevant Specified Currency
governed by an agreement incorporating the 2000 [SDA
Definitions and the Annex to the 2000 ISDA Definitions (each as
published by the Intemational Swaps and Derivatives Association,
Inc., and as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the
first Tranche of the Notes of the relevant Series); or

(il on the basis of a reference rate appearing on the agreed screen
page of a commercial quotation service; or

{iy on such other basis as may be agreed between the relevant
Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

The margin (if any) relating to such floating rate wiil be agreed between
the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer for each Series of Floating
Rate Notes.

Payments of principal in respect of index Linked Redemption Notes or
of interest in respect of Index Linked Interest Notes will be calculated
by reference to such index and/or formula or to changes in the prices
of securities or commaodities or to such cther factors as the relevant
Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.




Other provisions in relation
to Floating Rate Notes and
Index Linked Interest Notes:

Dual Currency Notes:

Zero Coupon Notes:

Redemption:

Denomination of Notes:

Index Linked Notes which are issued as an appel public a I'épargne in
France must be issued in compliance with the Principes Geénédraux
from time to time set by the COB and the Conseil des Bourses de
Valeurs or any successor body thereto.

Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes may also have a
maximum interest rate, a minimum interest rate or both.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes and index Linked Interest Notes in
respect of each interest Period, as agreed prior to issue by the relevant
Issuer and the relevant Dealer, will be payable on such interest
Payment Dates, and will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count
Fraction, as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the
relevant Dealer.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and whether at
maturity or otherwise) in respect of Dual Currency Notes will be made
in such currencies, and based on such rates of exchange, as the
relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

Zero Coupon Notes will be offered and sold at a discount to their
nominal amount and will not bear interest.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will indicate either that the Notes
cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than in
specified instalments, if applicable, or for taxation reasons or following
an Event of Default) or that such Notes will be redeemabie at the
option of the relevant Issuer and/or the Noteholders upon giving the
relevant period of notice specified in the Terms and Conditions (or
such other notice period as is specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplerment) to the Noteholders or the relevant Issuer, as the case
may be, on a date or dates specified prior to such stated maturity and
at a price or prices and on such cother terms as may be agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

The applicable Pricing Supplement may provide that Notes may be
redeemable in two or more instalments of such amounts and on such
dates as are indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Unless otherwise permitted by then current laws and regulations,
Notes (including Notes denominated in Sterling} in respect of which
the issue proceeds are to be accepted by the relevant Issuer in the
United Kingdom must have a minimum redemption amount of
£100,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies), unless such Notes
may not be redeemed until the third anniversary of their Issue Date and
are to be listed on the Official List and admitied to trading on the
London Stock Exchange or listed on another stock exchange of a
country within the European Economic Area (an “EEA Exchange”).

Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer save that the
minimum denomination of each Note will be such as may be allowed
or required from time to time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent
body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the relevant Specified
Currency.

Unless otherwise permitted by then current laws and regulations,
Notes {including Notes denominated in Sterling) in respect of which
the issue proceeds are to be accepted by the relevant Issuer in the
United Kingdom must have a minimum denomination of £100,000 (or
its equivalent in other currencies), unless such Notes may not be
redeemed until the third anniversary of their Issue Date and are to be




Taxation:

Negative Pledge:

Cross Default:

Status of the Notes:

Guarantee:

Rating:

Listing:

listed on the Official List and admitted to trading on the London Stock
Exchange or listed on another EEA Exchange.

All payments in respect of the Notes will be made without deduction
for or on account of withholding taxes imposed within the United
Kingdorn, subject as provided in Condition 9. In the event that any
such deduction is made, the relevant issuer or, as the case may be,
the relevant lssuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant lssuer is NWW)
will, save in certain limited circumstances provided in Condition 9, be
required 1o pay additional amounts fo cover the amounts so deducted.

The terms of the Notes will contain a negative pledge provision as
further described in Condition 4.

The terms of the Notes will contain a cross default provision as further
described in Condition 11.

The Notes will be direct, unconditicnal, unsubordinated and {subject
to the provisions of Condition 4) unsecured obligations of the relevant
Issuer and will rank pari passu among themselves and (subject as
aforesaid and save for certain obligations required to be preferred by
law) equally with all other unsecured obligations (other than
subordinated obligations, if any) of the relevant Issuer, from time to
time outstanding.

Notes issued by NWW will be unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the Guarantor. The obligations of the Guarantor
under such guarantee wilt be direct, unconditional, unsubordinated
and (subject to the provisions of Condition 4) unsecured obligations of
the Guarantor and (subject as aforesaid and save for certain
obligations required to be preferred by law) will rank equally with all
other unsecured obligations {other than subordinated obligations, if
any) of the Guarantor.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement,
Notes to be issued under the Programme by United Utilities PLC with
an initial maturity of one year or less will be rated P-2 by Moody's and
A-2 by Standard & Poor's and Notes with an initial maturity of more
than one year will be rated A3 by Moody's and BBB+ by Standard &
Poor's. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, Notes to be issued under the Programme by
NORWER plc and NWW with an initial maturity of one year or less
will be rated P-1 by Moody's and A-2 by Standard & Poor’s and Notes
with an initial maturity of more than one year wilt be raied A2 by
Moody's and A- by Standard & Poor's. Notes issued under the
Programme rnay be rated or unrated. Where an issue of Notes is
rated, its rating will not necessarily be the same as the rating assigned
to Notes issued under the Programme. A credit rating is not a
recormmendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to
revision, suspension or withdrawal at any time by the relevant rating
organisation.

Application has been made 1o list the Notes on the Official List and to
admit them to trading on the London Stock Exchange. The Notes may
also be listed on such other or further stock exchange(s) as may be
agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer in relation
to each Series. It is strongly recommended by the French Ministry of
the Economy, Finance and Industry that Notes denominated in French
francs or euro shouid be listed on the Paris Bourse particularly, but not
exclusively, where such Notes are to be offered publicly in France.




Governing Law:

Selling Restrictions:

Paris Listed Notes will be issued subject to the requirements of the
COB and the Paris Bourse.

Unlisted Notes may also be issued.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will state whether or not the
relevant Notes are to be listed and, if so, on which stock exchange(s).

The Notes will be governed by, and construed in accordance with,
English law.

There are restrictions on the offer, sale and transfer of the Notes in the
United States, the United Kingdom, Japan and Germany and such
other restrictions as may be required in connection with the offering
and sale of a particular Tranche of Notes — see “Subscription and
Sale”.
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FORM OF THE NOTES

The Notes of each Series will be In bearer form, with or without interest coupons (“Coupons™) attached.

Each Tranche of Notes will initially be issued in the form of either a temporary global note (a “Temporary
Global Note") or a permanent global note (a “Permanent Global Note") as indicated in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, which, in either case, will be deliverad an or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a
common depositary {the "Common Depositary”} for Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York,
Brussels Office, as operator of the Euroclear System {"Euroclear”) and Clearstreamn Banking, société
anonyme (“Clearstream, Luxembourg™). Whilst any Note is represented by a Temporary Global Note,
payments of principal, interest {if any) and any other amount payable in respect of the Notes due prior to the
Exchange Date (as defined below) will be made against presentation of the Temporary Global Note only o
the extent that certification (in a form to be provided) to the effect that the beneficial owners of interests in
such Note are not U.S. persons or persons who have purchased for resale to any U.S. person, as required
by U.8. Treasury regulations, has been received by Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and
Euroclear and/or Clearstrearn, Luxembourg, as applicable, has given a fike certification {based on the
certifications it has received) to the Principal Paying Agent.

On and after the date (the “Exchange Date”) which, in respect of each Tranche in respect of which a
Temporary Global Note is issued, is the later of (i) 40 days after the Temporary Global Note is issued and (i)
40 days after the completion of the distribution of the relevant Tranche, as certified by the relevant Dealer (in
the case of a non-syndicated issue) or the relevant Lead Manager (in the case of a syndicated issue) (the
“Distribution Compliance Period™), interests in such Temporary Global Note will be exchangeable {free of
charge) upon a request as described therein either for (i) interests in a Permanent Giobal Note of the same
Series or (i} for definitive Notes of the same Series with, where applicable, receipts, Coupcns and talons
attached {as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement and subject, in the case of definitive Notes, to
such notice period as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) in each case against certification of
beneficial ownership ag described above uniess such certification has already besn given. The holder of a
Temporary Global Note will not be entitled to collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount due
on or after the Exchange Date unless upon due cerification exchange of the Temporary Global Note for an
interest in a Permanent Global Note or for definitive Notes is improperly withheld or refused.

Paymernits of principal, interest (if any} or any other amounts on a Permanent Global Note will be made
through Eurcclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg against presentation or surrender (as the case may be)
of the Permanent Global Note without any requirement for certification. The applicable Pricing Supplement
will specify that a Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whale but not in part, for
definitive Notes with, where applicable, receipts, Coupons and talons attached upon either (i) not less than
60 days’ written notice from Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg {acting on the instructions of any
holder of an interest in such Permanent Giobal Note) to the Principal Paying Agent as described therein or
(i) only upen the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, “Exchange Event” means that (j)
an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, (i} the Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a continucus period of 14 days (other than by
reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or
have in fact done so and ne alternative clearing system satisfactory to the Trustee is available or (i) the
relevant Issuer has or will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided for or referred to in
Congdfition 9 which would not be required were the Notes represented by the Permanent Global Note in
definitive form. The retevant Issuer will promptly give nctice to the Notehoiders in accordance with
Condition 15 if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the accurrence of an Exchange Event, Euroclear
and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an inferest in such Permanent
Global Note) or the Trustee may give notice to the Principal Paying Agent requesting exchange and, in the
event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (ifi} above, the relevant [ssuer may also give
notice to the Principal Paying Agent requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 60
days after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Principal Paying Agent.

The following legend will appear on all Notes which have an original maturity of 365 days or more and on all
receipts and Coupons relating to such Notes:

“ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS

UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN
SECTIONS 165() AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE.”
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The sections referred to provide that United States holders, with certain exceptions, will not be entitied to
deduct any loss on Notes, receipts or Coupons and will not be entitled to capital gains treatment of any
gain on any sale, disposition, redemption or payment of principal in respect of such Notes, receipts or
Coupons.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the rules and
procedures for the time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be.

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”) the Frincipal
Paying Agent shall arrange that, where a further Tranche of Notes is issued which is intended to form a
single Series with an existing Tranche of Notes, the Notes of such further Tranche shall be assigned a
common code and ISIN which are different from the common code and ISIN assigned to Notes of any other
Tranche of the same Series until at least the expiry of the Distribution Compliance Period applicable to the
Notes of such Tranche.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg each person {other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the
time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular
nominal amount of such Notes {in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the account of any person
shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the
relevant Issuer, the Guarantor {(where the relavant Issuer is NWW) and their agents as the holder of such
nominal amount of such Notes for alf purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or
interest on such nominal ameunt of such Notes, for which purpose the bearer of the relevant Global Note
shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where tha relevant Issuer is NWW) and their agents as
the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of the
relevant Global Note and the expressions “Noteholder” and “holder of Notes” and related expressions shall
be construed accordingly.

Any reference herein to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits,
be deemed to include a reference to any successor operator and/or successor clearing system and/or any
additional or alternative clearing system specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement or otherwise
approved by the relevant Issuer, the Principal Paying Agent and the Trustee.

Any reference herein to the Common Depositary shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to
include references to any successor common depositary or any additional or aliemative common
depositary as is approved by the relevant Issuer, the Principal Paying Agent and the Trustee.
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" FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Set out below is the form of Pricing Supplement which will be compilsted for each Tranche of Notes issued
under the Programme.

[Date]

[UNITED UTILITIES PLC]
[NORWESB pic]
[NORTH WEST WATER FINANCE PLC]

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
[Guaranteed by North West Water Limited]
under the U.5.$3,000,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme

{The Notes constitute f[commercial paper/shorter term debt securities/langer term debt
securities]" issued in accordance with regulations made under section 4 of the Banking Act
1987. The Issuer of the Notes is not an authorised institution or a European authorised institution (as such
terms are defined in the Banking Act 1987 (Exempt Transactions) Regulations 1997). Repayment of the
principal and payment of any interest or premiurn in connection with the Notes has [not]® been guaranteed
by North West Water Limited, which is not an authorised institution or a European authorised
institution)®.J®

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating 10 the issue of Notes described herein. Terms
used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the
Offering Circular dated [4 QOctober, 2000]. This Pricing Supplement is supplemental to and must be read in
conjunction with such Offering Circular,

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not Applicable” (N/A). Note that the numbering
should remain as set out below, even if “Not Applicable” is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub-
paragraphs.]

1. iy Issuer [United Utflities PLC/NORWEB pic/North West
Water Finance PLC]
) Guarantor: North West Water Limited]
2, [)] Series Number: ] '
[i)  Tranche Number: []

(if fungible with an existing Series, details of that
Serigs, including the date on which the Notes

become fungible}]
3. Specified Currency or Currencies: il
4. Aggregate Nominal Amount:
—  Tranche:
—  Series:

5. i Issue Price of Tranche: per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount
plus accrued interest from [insert date] {(in the
case of fungible issues only, if applicable)]

{Required only for flisted issues))

,__.__,.__.,__,
At el et

[l Net proceeds: i1
6. Specified Denominations: (]
(]
7. I issue Date [and Interest Commencement | ]
Date):
[ Interest Commencement Date (if different
from the lssue Date): (n

(1} Include “commerciat paper™ if Notes must be redeemed before their first anniversary. Include “shorter term debt securities” if
Notes may nol be redeerned before their first anniversary but must be redeemed belfore their third anniversary. Include “longer
{erm debt securities” ff Notes may not be redeemed before their third anniversary.

(&) Delete as appiicable.

(3} Unless otherwise permitted, text to be included for all Notes (including Notes denominated in Sterling) in respect of which the
issue proceeds are accepted by the Issuer in the United Kingdom.
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8. Maturity Date: [Fixed rate — specify date/Fioating rate - Interest
Payment Date faling in or nearest to [specify
- ' month]

9. Interest Basis: [[1 per cent. Fixed Rate] [[LIBOR/EURIBCR]
[+/-] | ] per cent. Floating Rate] [Zero Coupon)]
index Linked Interest] [specify other] (further
particulars specified below)

10. Redemption/Payment Basis: [Redemption at par] [Index Linked Redemption]
[Dual Currency] [Partly Paid] [Instaiment] [specify
other]

11. Change of Interest Basis or Redemption/ ([Specify details of any provision for change of
Payment Basis: Notes into another Interest Basis or Redemption/
Payrment Basis]

12. Put/Call Options: [investor Put] [lssuer Call] [{further particulars
) specified below)]
13. [(})] Status of the Notes: [Senior]
[(iy Status of the Guarantee: [Senior]]
14, Listing: ' [London/Luxembourg/specify other/None]
15. Method of distribution: [Syndicated/Non-syndicateq]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

16. Fixed Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]
{if not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

(i} Ratel(s)] of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum [payable [annually/semi-
annually/gquarterly] in arrear]
{if payable other than annually, consider amending

Condition 6)

{i) Interest Payment Date(s): [ ]in each year

(i) Fixed Coupon Amount(s): [ ] per| ] in nominal amount

{iv) Broken Amount(s): [insert particulars of any initial or final broken
interest amounis which do not correspond with
the Fixed Coupon Amount]

(v) Day Count Fraction: [Actual/Actual (ISMA) or 30/360 or specify other]

{Actual/Actual (ISMA) is normally only appropriate
for Fixed Rate Notes denominated in euro)

(V) Determination Date(s): [ ] in sach vear [Insert reguiar interest payment
dates, ignoring issue date or maturity date in the
case of a long or short first or last coupon] (N.B.
This will need to be amended in the case of regular
interest payment dates, which are not of equal
duration and it is only relevant where day count
fraction is Actual/Actual ((SMA))

(vit Other terms relating to the method of  [None/Give details)
calculating interest for Fixed Rate Notes:

17. Floating Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]
{iff not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)
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(i)
(v}

{vii)

i)
(9
)
{d)

Specified  Period(s)/Specified
Payment Dates:

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centre(s):

interest

Manner in which the Rate of Interest and

Interest Amount are to be determined:

Party responsible for calculating the Rate of
Interest and interest Amount (if not the

Principal Paying Agent):
Screen Rate Determination:

— Reference Rate:

- Interest Determination Dats(s):

- Relevant Screen Page:

ISDA Determination:

- Floating Rate Option:
-~ Designated Maturity:
—  Reset Date:
Margin{s):

Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maximum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

15

{}

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Conventiony/
ispecify other])

(1

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/
ispecify other]]

{]

(1

{Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although
additional information is required ¥ other -
including fallback provisions in the Agency
Agreement)

[]

{Second London business day prior to the start of
each Interest Period if LIBOR (other than Steriing
L/IBOR, EURIBOR or euro LIBOR), first day of each
interest Petiod if Sterling ({BOR and the second
day on which the TARGET System is open prior to
the start of each Interest Period if EURIBOR or
eurg LIBOF)

(]

{iln the case of EURIBOR, if not Telerate 248
ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate
or amend the fallback provisions approximately)

[+/-) [ ] per cent. per annum
[ 1 per cent. per annum
[ 1 per cent. per annum

[Actual/365

Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

30/360

30E/360

Other)

{See Condition 6 for afternatives)




i8.

19.

20.

{(xii) Fall back provisions, rounding provisions
and any other terms refating to the method
of calculating interest on Floating Rate
Notes, if different from those set out in the
Conditions:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions

(i Accrua Yield:
Reference Price:

Any other formula/basis of determining
amount payable:

(v} Day Count Fraction in relation to Early

Redemption Amounts and late payment:

Index Linked Interest Note Provisions

i} Index/Formula:

(i) Calculation Agent responsible for
calculating the principal and/or interest
due:

(i) Provisions for determining coupon where
calculation by reference to Index and/or
Formula is impossible or impracticable:

(iv) Specified Period{s)/Specified
Payment Dates:

Interest

Business Day Convention:

(vi)
(vii
(viil
{ix)

Dual Currency Note Provisions

Additional Business Centre(s):
Minimum Rate of Interest:
Maxirmum Rate of Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

i Rate of Exchange/method of calculating
Rate of Exchange:

(i) Calculation Agent, if any, responsible for

calculating the principal and/or interest

payable:

16

[

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
{if not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum

[]
[]

(Consider applicable day count fraction if euro
denominated)

[Conditions 8{e)ili} and 8() apply/specify other]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(ff not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

igive or annex details]

[]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/
specify other]

[]
[ ] per cent. per annum
[ ] per cent. per annum

[]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
{ff not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[give details)




(i) Provigsions applicable where calculation by
reference 1o Rate of Exchange impossible
or impracticable:

{iv)

Person at whose option
Currency(ies) is/are payable:

Specified

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

21,

22,

23.
24.

Issuer Call:

()  Optional Redemption Date(s):
(i) Optional Redemption Amount(s) and
method, i any, of calculalion of such
amount(s):

(i)

If redeemable in part:
{8 Minimum Redemption Amount:

{p) Higher Redemption Amount:

(v} Notice period (If other than as set out in the
Conditions):

fnvestor Put:

i} Optional Redemption Date(s):

(il  Optional Redemption Amouni{s) and
method, if any, of calculation of such
amount(s):

{iiy MNoftice period (if other than as set out in the

Conditions):

Final Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amount{s}) payable on
redemption for taxation reasons or on event of
default and/or the method of calculating the
same {if required or if different from that set out
in Condition 8(g)):

(1

t)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(if not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[]

[Applicable/Not Applicable)
{if not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

[]

(]

[]
[Par/spacify other/see Appendix]

t]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

25,

Form of Notes:

17

Temporary Giobal Note exchangeable for a
Permanent Global Note which is exchangeable
for Definitive Notes [on 60 days’ notice given at
any time/only upon an Exchange Event}.
(Temporary Global Note exchangeable for
Definitive Notes on and after the Exchange Date.]
[Permanent Giobat Note exchangeable for
Definitive Notes fon 60 days' notice given at any
time/only upon an Exchange Event]]




26.

27.

29,

30.

31.

Additional Financial Centre(s) or other special
provisions relating to Payment Dates:

Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be
attached to Definitive Notes (and dates on which
such Talons mature):

Details relating to Partly Paid Notes: amount of
each payment comprising the Issue Price and
date on which each payment is to be made and
consequences of failure to pay, including any
right of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes and interest
duge on late payment:

Details relating to Instalment Neotes: amount of
each instalment, date on which each payment is
to be made: ;

Redenomination applicable:

Other terms or special conditions:

~ DISTRIBUTION

32.

33.
34.

35.

it f syndicated, names of Managers:
{ii Stabilising Manager {if any):
If non-syndicated, name of relevant Dealer:

Whether TEFRA D or TEFRA C rules applicable
or TEFRA rules not applicable:

Additional selling restrictions:

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

36.

37.

[39.

Any clearing systern(s) other than Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg and the relevant
identification number(s):

Delivery:
Additional Paying Ageni(s) {if any}):

INotes in respect of which the issue proceeds
are accepted by the refevant Issuer in the United
Kingdom and which are to be listed. The text set
out below may be deleted if the relevant Issuer is
relying on any of Regulation 13{4)(c) to (g)]

The Issuer confirms that it:

(@)

[Not Applicable/give details)

(Note that this iferm refates to the place of payment
and not inferest Period end dates to which items
17} and 19{vi) relate)

[Yes/No. If yes, give details]

[Not Applicable/give details. (A new form of
Temporary Global Note and/or Permanent Global
Note may be required for Partly Paid issues))

[Not Appiicable/give details]

Redenomination [not]
Redenomination is applicable, specify the
appiicable Day Count Fraction and any
provisions necessary to deal with ficating rate
interest calculation (including afternative reference
rates)]

applicable [

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give names]

[Not Applicable/give name)
[]

[TEFRA D/TEFRA C/TEFRA not applicable]

[Not Applicable/give detaiis]

iNot Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]

Delivery [against/free off payment

[]

has complied with its cbligations under the relevant rules (as defined in the Banking Act 1987

(Exermpt Transactions) Regulations 1997 (the “Regulations™}) in relation to the admission to and
continuing listing of the Programme and of any previous issues made under it and listed on the

same exchange as the Programme;
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(b} will have complied with its obligations under the relevant rules in relation to the admission to listing
of such Notes by the time when such Notes are so admitted; [and]

{c} has not, since the last publication, if any, in compliance with the relevant rules of information
about the Programme, any previous issues rmade under it and listed on the same exchange as
the Programme, or the Notes, having made all reasonable enquiries, become aware of any
change in circumstances which could reasonably be regarded as significantly and adversely
affecting its ahility to meet its obligations as Issuer in respect of the Notes as they fall due; [and

{d) has complied and wili continue to comply with its obligations under the Regulations o lodge all
relevant information {as defined in the Regulations) in relation to any such Notes with the Financial
Services Authority in its capacity as UK Listing Authority.] (Only relevant for London Listed Nofes)

ISIN: (]
Common Code: ]
LISTING APPLICATION

This Pricing Supplement comprises the details required to list the issue of Notes described herein pursuant
to the listing of the U.S.$3,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme established by United Utilities
FLC, NORWEB plc and North West Water Finance FLC.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer [and the Guarantor] acceptis] responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing
Supplement.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer: [Signed on behalf of the Guarantor:
Y S PI By i e
Duty authorised Duly authorised)

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies any modification to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes as
described herein, it is envisaged that, to the extent that such modification relates only to Conditions
1,5,6,7.8 (except Condition 8()), 12, 14, 15 {insofar as such Notes are not listed or admitted to trading on
any stock exchange or cther relevant authority) or 18, they will not necessitate the preparation of
supplementary Listing Particutars. if ihe Terms and Conditions of the Notes of any Series are 1o be modified
in any other respect, supplementary Listing Particulars will be prepared, if appropriate.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following are the Terms and Conditions of the Notes which will be incorporated by reference into each
Globaf Note (as defined belowj and each definitive Note, in the fafter case only if permitted by the refevant
stock exchange or other relevant authority (if any) and agreed by the relevant lssuer and the refevant Dealer
at the time of issue but, if not so permitted and agreed, such definitive Note will have endorsed thereon or
attached thereto such Terms and Conditions. The applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to any Tranche
of Notes may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or fo the extent
inconsistent with the folfowing Terms and Conditions, replace or modify the following Terms and Conditions
for the purpose of such Notes. The applicable Pricing Supplement (or the relevant provisions thereof) will be
endorsed upon, or attached to, each Global Note and definitive Note. Reference should be made to “Form
of the Notes” for a description of the content of Pricing Supplements which will inciude the definitions of
certain terrms used in the following Terms and Conditions and/or will specify which of such terms are to
apply in refation to the relevant Notes.

This Note is one of a Series (as defined below) of Notes issued by United Utilities PLC, NORWEB ple or
North West Water Finance PLC {"NWW?") (each an “Issuer” and, together, the “Issuers”) constituted by a
Trust Deed (such Trust Deed, as modified and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the
“Trust Deed”) dated 13 October, 1998 made between the Jssuers, North West Water Limited (the
“Guarantor”) as guarantor of Notes issued by NWW and The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c. (the
“Trustee”, which expression shall include any successor as trustee).

References herein to the “Notes” shall be references to the Notes of this Series and shall mean:

() inrelation to any Notes represented by a global Note {a “Global Note”™), units of the lowest Specified
Denomination in the Spacified Currency;

{iy any Global Note; and
(i) any definitive Notes issued in exchange for a Global Note.

References herein to the “relevant Issuer” shall be to the lssuer of the Notes named as such in the
applicable Pricing Supplement (as defined betow).

The Notes, the Receipts (as defined below) and the Coupons (as defined below) have the benefit of an
Agency Agreement (such Agency Agreement, as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated from time
to time, the “Agency Agreement”) dated 13 October, 1928 and made between the lssuers, the Guarantor,
Citibank, N.A. as issuing and principal paying agent and agent bank {the "Principal Paying Agent”, which
expression shall include any successor principal paying agent), the other paying agents named therein
ftogether with the Principal Paying Agent, the “Paying Agents”, which expression shall include any
additional or successor paying agents) and the Trustee.

Interest bearing definitive Notes (unless otherwise indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement) have
interest coupons (“Coupons”) and, if indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, talons for further
Coupons (“Talons”) attached on issue. Any reference herein to Coupons or coupons shall, unless the
context otherwise requires, be deemed to include a reference to Talons or talons. Definitive Notes
repayable in instalments have receipts (*Receipts”) for the payment of the instalments of principal (other
than the final instalment} attached on issue. Global Notes do not have Receipts, Coupons or Talons
attached on issue.

The Pricing Supplement for this Note {or the relevant provisions thereof) is attached to or endorsed on this
Note and supplements these Terms and Conditions and may specify other terms and conditions which
shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Terms and Conditions, replace or
modify these Terms and Conditions for the purposes of this Note. References to the “applicable Pricing
Supplement” are to the Pricing Supplement (or the relevant provisions thereof) attached o or endorsed on
this Note.

The Trustee acts for the benefit of the helders for the time being of the Notes {the "Noteholders”, which
expression shall, in relation to any Notes represented by a Global Note, be construed as provided below),
the holders of the Receipts (the "Receiptholders”) and the holders of the Coupons (the “Couponholders”,
which expression shall, unless the context otherwise requires, include the holders of the Talons), in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

20




Ag used herein, “Tranche™ means Notes which are identical in all respects (inciuding as to listing) and
“Series” means a Tranche of Notes together with any further Tranche or Tranches of Notes which are (i)
expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (i) identical in all respects including as to listing)
except for their respective tssue Dates, Interest Commencement Dates and/or lssue Prices.

Copies of the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the applicable Pricing Supplement are available for
inspection during normal business hours at the registered office for the time being of the Trustee (being at
4 October, 2000 at Princes House, 95 Gresharn Street, London EC2V 7LY) and at the specified office of
each of the Paying Agents save that, if this Note is an unlisted Note of any Series, the appilicable Pricing
Supplement will only be available for ingpection by a Noteholder holding one or more unlisted Notes of that
Series and such Noteholder must produce evidence satisiactory to the Trustee or, as the case may be, the
relevant Paying Agent as to its holding of such Notes and identity. The Noteholders, the Receiptholders and
the Couponholders are deemed to have notice of, and are entitled to the benefit of, all the provisions of the
Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the applicable Pricing Supplement which are applicable to them.
The statements in these Terms and Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed
provisions of the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement.

Words and expressions defined in the Trust Deed or the Agency Agreement or used in the applicable
Pricing Supplement shall have the same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions unless the
context otherwise requires or uniess otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of inconsistency
between the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement, the Trust Deed will prevail and, in the event of
inconsistency between the Agency Agreement or the Trust Deed and the applicable Pricing Supplement,
the applicable Pricing Supplement will prevail.

1. Form, Denomination and Title

The Notes are in bearer form and, in the case of definitive Notes, serfally numbered, in the Specified
Currency and the Specified Denomination(s). Notes of one Specified Denomination may not be exchanged
for Notes of another Specified Denomination.

This Note is a Fixed Rate Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Zere Coupon Note, an Index Linked Interest Note,
an Index Linked Redermiption Note, an Instaiment Note, a Dual Currency Note or a Partly Paid Note, or a
combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Interest/Payment Basis and/or Redemption/
Payment Basis shown in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Definitive Notes are issued with Coupons attached, unless they are Zero Coupon Notes in which case
references to Coupons and Couponhalders in these Terms and Conditions are not applicable.

Subject as set out below, title to the Notes, Receipts and Coupons will pass by delivery. The relevant
lssuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant issuer is NWW), any Paying Agent and the Trustee will {except as
otherwise required by iaw) deem and treat the bearer of any Note, Receipt or Coupon as the absolute
owner thereof (whether or not overdue and notwithstanding any notice of ownership or writing thereon or
notice of any previous loss or theft thereof} for all purposes but, in the case of any Glcohal Note, without
prejudice to the provisions set out in the next succeeding paragraph.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Morgan Guaranty Trust
GCompany of New York, Brussels office, as operator of the Euroclear System ("Euroclear”) and/or
Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (“Clearstream, Luxembourg”), each person {other than Euroclear
or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream,
Luxembourg as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Notes (in which regard any certificate or
other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the nominal amount of such Notes
standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of
manifest error) shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW), the
Paying Agents and the Trustee as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other
than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of such Notes, for which
purpose the bearer of the relevant Global Note shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where
the relevant lssuer is NWW), any Paying Agent and the Trustee as the holder of such nominal amount of
such Notes in accordance with and subject 1o the terms of the relevant Giobal Note and the expressions
“Noteholder™ and *holder of Notes” and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the rules and
procedures for the time being of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be. References
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to Eurcclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to
include a reference to any successor operator and/or successor clearing system and/or any additional or
alternative clearing system specified in the applicable Pricing Suppiement or otherwise approved by the
relevant Issuer, the Principal Paying Agent and the Trustee.

2. Status of the Notes

The Notes and any relative Receipts and Coupons are direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject
to the provisions of Condition 4) unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuer and rank pari passu among
themselves and {subject as aforesaid and save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law)
equally with all other unsecured obligations {other than subordinated cbligations, if any} of the Issuer, from
time to time cutstanding.

3. The Guarantee

The payment of principal, premium {if any) and interest in respect of the Notes and all other moneys payable
by NWW under or pursuant to the Trust Deed has been unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the
Guaranter in the Trust Deed (the "Guarantee”). The obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee are
direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subiect to the provisions of Condition 4) unsecured obligations
of the Guarantor and (subject as aforesaid and save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law)
rank equally with all other unsecured obligations (cther than subordinated obligations, if any) of the
Guarantor, from time to time outstanding.

4. Negative Pledge

So jong as any of the Notes remains outstanding (as defined in the Trust Deed) neither the relevant Issuer
nor the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) will create or permit to subsist any mortgage, charge,
pledge, lien or other form of security interest upon the whoie or any part of its undertaking, revenues or
assets, present or future, to secure payment of any present or future Relevant Indebtedness (as defined
below) of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Subsidiary (as
defined in the Trust Deed} of either the refevant Issuer or (where the retevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor
or to secure any guarantee or indemnity in respect thereof, without at the same time according to the Notes
or, as the case may be, the Guarantes, to the satisfaction of the Trustes, the same security as is created or
subsisting to secure any such Relevant indebtedness, guarantee or indemnity, or such other security as the
Trustee shall in its abysolute discretion deem not materially less beneficial to the interests of the Noteholders
or as shall be approved by an Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the Trust Deed) of the Noteholders.

“Relevant Indebtedness” means any present or future indebtedness (whether being principal, premium or
interest) for borrowed money (other than indebtedness for borrowed money with an initial maturity falling 20
years or more after the issue of the Notes and having a maximum principal amount outstanding at any time
not exceeding the greater of £250,000,000 and 20 per cent. of Adjusted Capital and Reserves (as defined
in Condition 11) or indebtedness for borrowed money which has a stated maturity not exceeding one year)
which is in the form of, or represented or evidenced by, bonds, notes, debentures, debenture stock, loan
stock or other securities, whether issued for cash or in whole or in part for a consideration other than cash
and which, with the agreement of the relevant issuer, are quoted, listed, dealt in or traded on a stock
exchange or over the counter or other recognised securities market (whether or not distributed by way of
private placemeant).

5. Redenomination
(a) Redenomination

Where redenomination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as being applicable, the
relevant Issuer may, without the consent of the Trustee, the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and
the Coupenholders, on giving prior notice to the Trustee, the Principal Paying Agent, Euroclear
and Clearstreamn, Luxembourg and at least 30 days’ prior notice to the Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 15, elect that, with effect from the Redencmination Date specified in
the notice, the Notes shall be redenominated in euro.

The election will have effect as foliows:

i) the Notes and the Receipts shall be deemed to be redenominated in euro in the
denomination of euro 0.01 with a nominal amount for each Note and Receipt equal to the
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(i

i

{v)

i

(vi)

{vii)

nominal amount of that Note or Receipt in the Specified Currency, converted into euro
at the Established Rate, provided that, if the refevant issuer determines, with the consent of
the Trustee and the Principal Paying Agent, that the then market practice in respect of the
redenomination in euro of internationally offered securities is different from the provisions
specified above, such provisions shall be deemed 10 be amended so as to comply with such
market practice and the relevant lssuer shall promptly notify the Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 15, the stock exchange or other relevant authority {if any} on which the Notes
are listed and the Paying Agents of such deemed amendments;

save to the extent that an Exchange Notice has been given in accordance with paragraph {iv)
below, the amount of interest due in respect of the Notes will be calculated by reference to
the aggregate nominal amount of Notes presented (or, as the case may be, in respect of
which Coupons are presented) for payment by the relevant holder and the amount of such
payment shall be rounded down to the nearest euro 0.01,

if definitive Noles are required 1o be issued after the Redenomination Date, they shall be
issued at the expense of the relevant Issuer in the denominations of euro 1,000, euro
10,000, euro 100,000 and {but only to the extent of any remaining amounts less than euro
1,000 or such smaller denominations as the Trustee and the Principal Paying Agent may
approve} euro 0.01 and such other denominations as the Trustee and the Principal Paying
Agent shall determine and as shall be notified to the Notsholders in accordance with
Condition 15;

if definitive Notes have been issued prior to the Redenomination Date, all unmatured
Coupecns denominated in the Specified Currency {(whether or not attached to the Notes) will
become void with effect from the date on which the relevant Issuer gives notice (the
“Exchange Notice") that replacement euro-denominated Notes, Receipts and Coupons are
available for exchange (provided that such Notes, Receipts and/or Coupons are so available)
and no payments will be made in respect of them. The payment oblfigations contained in any
Nates and Receipts so issued will also become void on that date although those Notes and
Receipts will continue to constitute valicd exchange obligations of the relevant issuer. New
euro-denominated Notes, Receipts and Coupons will be issued in exchange for Notes,
Receipts and Coupons denominated in the Specified Currency in such manner as the
Trustee and the Principal Paying Agent may specify and as shall be notified to the
Noteholders in the Exchange Notice. No Exchange Netice may be given less than 15 days
prior to any date for payment of principal or interest on the Notes;

after the Redencmination Date, ali payments in respect of the Notes, the Receipts and the
Goupons, other than payments of interest in respect of periods commencing before the
Redenomination Date, will be mads solely in eurd as though references in the Notes to the
Specified Currency were {0 euro, Payments will be made in euro by credit or transfer to a
eurd account {or any other account to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified
by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by a euro cheque;

if the Notes are Fixed Rate Notes and interest for any period ending on or after the
Redenomination Date is required to be calculated for a period ending other than on an
Interest Payment Date it will be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified
Denomination, multiolying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction {(as defined in
Condition 6(a)), and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit (as defined in
Condition 6(a)) of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded
upwards or otherwise in accordance with the applicable market convention; and

if the Notes are Floating Rate Notes the applicable Pricing Supplerment specifies any relevant
changes to the provisions relating to interest.

Definitions

In these Terms and Conditions, the following expressions have the following meanings:

“Established Rate” means the rate for the conversion of the Specified Currency {including
compliance with rules refating to roundings in accordance with applicable European Community
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regulations) into euro established by the Council of the European Union pursuant to Article 109i(4)
of the Treaty,

“euro” means the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and
monetary union pursuant to the Treaty;

“Redenomination Date™ means {in the case of interest bearing Notes) any date for payment of
interast under the Notes or (in the case of Zerc Coupon Notes) any date, in each case specified
by the relevant issuer in the notice given to the Noteholders pursuant to paragraph (a) above and
which falls on ¢r after the date on which the country of the Specified Currency first participates in
the third stage of European economic and monetary union or otherwise participates in European
economic and monetary union in a manner with similar effect to such third stage; and

“Treaty” means the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended by the Treaty on
European Union and as amended by the Treaty of Amsterdam.

6. Interest

(a)

Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount {or, if it is a Partly Paid
Note, the amount paid up) from (and including) the Interest Cormmmencement Date at the rate(s)
per annum equal to the Ratefs) of Interest payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in
each year and on the Maturity Date if that does not fall on an Interest Payment Date.

Except as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the amount of interest payable on each
Interest Payment Date ending on such date will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount. Payments
of interast on any Interest Payment Date will, if so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement,
amount to the Broken Amount(s) so specified.

if interest is required to be calculated for a period ending other than on an Interest Payment Date,
such interest shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination,
multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to
the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded
upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.

In these Terms and Conditions:

“Day Count Fraction™ means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest in accordance
with this Condition &{a):

i if “Actual/Actual (ISMA)}” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement:

fa) in the case of Notes where the number of days in the relevant period from {and
including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest
Commencement Date) to {but excluding) the relevant payment date {the “Accrual
Period”) is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during which the Accrual
Period ends, the number of days in such Accrual Period divided by the product of (1)
the number of days in such Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination
Dates (as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) that would occur in one
calendar year; or

{b) in the case of Notes where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination Period
during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:

{1) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination Period in
which the Accrual Pertod begins divided by the product of () the number of days
in such Determination Pericd and {y) the number of Determination Dates (as
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) that would cccur in one calendar
year; and

(2) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination Period
divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination Period and
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)

{y) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement) that would occur in one calendar year; and

{iy if “30/360" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the
period from {and including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest
Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (such number of days
being calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months) divided by 360;

“Determination Period” means each period from {and including) a Determination Date to {but
exciuding) the next Determination Date (including, where either the Interest Commencement Date
or the final Interest Payment Date is not a Determination Date, the period commencing on the first
Determination Date prior to, and ending on the first Determination Date falling after, such date);
and

“sub-unit” means, with respect to any currency cther than suro, the lowest amount of such
currency that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro,
means one cent.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes
) Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note and Index Linked Interest Note bears interest on its outstanding
nominal amount {or, if it is a Partly Paid Note, the amount paid up) from (and inciuding} the
Interest Commencement Date and such interest will be payable in arrear on either:

{A) the Specified Interest Payment Datels) (each an “interest Payment Date"} in each year
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement; or

(B) if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, each date {gach an “Interest Payment Date”) which falls the number of
months or other period specified as the Specified Pericd in the applicable Pricing
Supplement after the preceding Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first
Interest Payment Date, after the Interest Commencement Date,

Such interest will be payable in raspect of each Interest Period (which expression shall, in
these Terms and Conditions, mean the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date

{or the interest Commencement Date) to {but excluding) the next (or first) interest Payment
Date).

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and (x) if
there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest
Payment Date should occur or {y) if any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day
which is not a Business Day, then, if the Business Day Convention specified is:

(1) in any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with Condition
B{b)([i}(B) above, the Floating Rate Convention, such Interest Payment Date (i} in the case
of {x) above, shall be the last day that is a Business Day in the relevant month and the
provisions of (B) below shall apply mutatis mutandis or (i) in the case of {y) above, shall
be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into
the next calendar month, in which event (A) such interest Payment Date shall be
brought forward fo the immediately preceding Business Day and (B} each subsequent
Interest Payment Date shall be the last Business Day in the month which falls the
Specified Pericd after the preceding applicable Interest Payrnent Date occurred; or

(2) the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shai be
postponed to the next day which is a Business Day; or

(3) the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such interest Payment Date shall be
postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the
next calendar month, in which event such Interest Payment Date shall be brought
forward to the immediately preceding Business Day; or
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{4) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be brought
forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

in this Condition, “Business Day” means a day which is both:

(A aday on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and
are open for general business (inciuding dealing in foreign exchange and foreign
currency deposits) in London and any Additional Business Centre specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement; and

{B) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Gurrency other than euro, a day
on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are
open for general business (inciuding dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency
deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified
Currency (if other than London and any Additional Business Centre and which, if the
Specified Currency is New Zealand dolfars, shall be Auckiand) or {2} in relation fo any
sum payable in euro, a.day on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross
Settiement Express Transfer (TARGET) System (the "TARGET System”) is open.

Rate of interest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes and Index
Linked Interest Notes will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.

{A) I1SDA Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the
manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each
Interest Period will be the relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated in the
applicable Pricing Supplement) the Margin (if any). For the purposes of this sub-
paragraph (A), “ISDA Rate” for an Interest Period means a rate equal to the Floating
Rate that would be determined by the Principal Paying Agent under an interest rate
swap transaction if the Principal Paying Agent were acting as Caiculation Agent for that
swap transaction under the terms of an agreement incorporating the 2000 ISDA
Definitions and the Annex to the 2000 ISDA Definitions, each as amended and updated
as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes and as published by the
International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. {the “ISDA Definitions™) and under
which:

(1) the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;

2) the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;
and

{3) the relevant Reset Date is either (i) if the applicable Floating Rate Option is based
on the London inter-bank offered rate (“LIBOR™) or on the Euro-zone inter-bank
offered rate ("EURIBOR") for a currency, the first day of that Interest Period or {ii) in
any other case, as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (A), (i) “Floating Rate”, “Calculation Agent”,
“Floating Rate Option™, "Designated Maturity” and "Reset Date” have the meanings
given to those terms in the ISDA Definitions; and (i) “Euro-zone” means the region
comprised of Member States of the European Union that adopt or have adopted the
single currency in accordance with the Treaty.

{B) Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Suppiement as
the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for
gach Interest Period will, subject as provided below, be either:

(1) the offered quotation; or
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(iii)

)

(2) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005
being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

{expressed as a percentage raie per annum) for the Reference Rate which appears or
appear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page as at 11.00 a.m. (London
time, in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the interest
Cetermination Date in question plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable Pricing
Supplement) the Margin (f any), all as determined by the Principal Paying Agent. If five
or more of such offered guotations are available on the Relevant Screen Page, the
highest (or, if there is more than one such highest guotation, one only of such
guotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than cne such lowest quotation, one only
of such guotations) shall be disregarded by the Principal Paying Agent for the purpose
of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above} of such offered
quotations.

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for determining the Rate of Interest in the
event that the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of (1) above, no
such offered quotation appears or, in the case of {2) above, fewer than three such
offered quotations appear, in"each case as at the time specified in the preceding
paragraph.

If the Reference Rate frorn time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes is specified in
the applicable Pricing Supplement as being other than LIBOR or EURIBOR, the Rate of
Interest in respect of such Notes will be determined as provided in the applicable
Pricing Supplement,

Minimum Rate of Interest and/or Maximum Rate of Interest

if the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies a Minimum Rate of Interest for any Interest
Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such interest Pericd
determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (i) above is less than such
Minimum Rate of interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Pericd shall be such
Minimum Rate of interest.

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies a Maximum Rate of [nterest for any interest
Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period
determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (i) above is greater than such
Maximum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such
Maximum Rate of Interest.

Determination of Rate of Interest and calculation of Interast Amounts

The Principal Paying Agent, in the case of Flcating Rate Notes, and the Calculation Agent, in
the case of index Linked Interest Notes, will at or as soon as practicable after each time at
which the Rate of interest is to be determined, determine the Rate of Interest for the relevant
interest Period. In the case of Index Linked Interest Notes, the Calcuiation Agent will notify
the Principal Paying Agent of the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period as soon as
practicabie after calculating the same.

The Principal Paying Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the “Interest Amount")
payable on the Floating Rate Notes or Index Linked Interest Notes in respect of each
Specified Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. Each Interest Amount shall be
calculated by applying the Rate of Interest 1o each Specified Denomination, multiplying such
sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure 1o the nearest
sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, haif of any such sub-unit being rounded
upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.

“Day Count Fraction” means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest for any
nterest Period:

) if “Actual/365” or “Actual/Actual” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the
actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 {or, if any portion of that
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v

(vi)

Interest Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A} the actual number of days in that
portion of the Interest Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual
number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a non-leap year divided by
365); '

(il if “Actual/365 (Fixed)" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 3865;

Giiy if “Actual/365 (Sterling)” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 or, in the case of an Interest
Payment Date falling in a leap year, 366;

) if "Actual/360" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of
days in the Interest Period divided by 360;

(v) if “30/360", "360/360" or “Bond Basis” ig specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, the number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number
of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months
{unless {a) the last day of the Interest Period is the 31st day of a month but the first day
of the Interest Pericd is a day other than the 30th or 31st day of a monih, in which case
the month that includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a
30-day month, or {b) the last day of the Interest Period is the last day of the month of
February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be
lengthened to a 30-day month)); and

fvi) if “30E/360" or “Eurcbond Basis” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be
calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months, without regard to
the date of the first day or last day of the Interest Period unless, in the case of the final
Interest Pericd, the Maturity Date is the last day of the month of February, in which case
the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).

Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amounts

The Principal Paying Agent will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount for each
Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the relevant Issuer
and any stock exchange or other relevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate
Notes or Index Linked Interest Notes are for the time being listed and notice thereof to be
published in accordance with Condition 15 as scon as possible after their determination but
in no event later than the fourth London Business Day thereafter. Each Interest Amount and
Interest Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative
arrangemsnts made by way of adjustment) without prior notice in the event of an extension
or shortening of the Interest Period. Any such amendment will be promptiy notified to each
stock exchange or other refevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes or
Index Linked Interest Notes are for the time being listed and to the Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 15, For the purposes of this paragraph, the expression “L.ondon
Business Day” means a day {other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks and foreign
exchange markets are open for business in London.

Determination or Calculation by Trustee

If for any reason at any relevant time the Principal Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the
Calculation Agent defaults in its obligation to determine the Rate of Interest or the Principal
Paying Agent defaults in its obligation to calculate any Interest Amount in accordance with
sub-paragraph (iifA) or (B) above or as otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, as the case may be, and in each case {iv) above, the Trustee shalt determine
the Rate of interest at such rate as, in its absciute discretion (having such regard as it shall
think fit to the foregoing provisions of this Condition, but subject always to any Minimum
Rate of Interest or Maximum Rate of Interest specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement),
it shall deem fair and reasonable in all the circumstances or, as the case may be, the Trustee
shall calculate the Interest Amount(s) in such manner as it shall deem fair and reasonable in
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all the circumstances and each such determination or ¢aiculation shall be deemed to have
been macde by the Principal Paying Agent or the Calculation Agent, as appiicable.

{vi) Certificates to be final

Al certificates, communications, opinions, determinations, calculations, quotations and
decisions given, expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this
Condition 6(b), whether by the Principal Paying Agent or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent
or the Trustee, shall {in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding
on the relevant issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant issuer is NWW), the Trustee, the
Principal Paying Agent, the Calculation Agent (if applicable), the other Paying Agents and all
Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponholders and (in the absence as aforesaid) no
liability to the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor {where the relevant Issuer is NWW), the
Noteholders, the Receiptholders or the Couponholders shall attach to the Principal Paying
Agent or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent or the Trustee in connection with the exercise
or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions pursuant to such provisions.

Interest on Dual Gurrency Notes

In the case of Duat Currency Notes, if the rate or amount of interest falls to be determined by
reference to an exchange rate, the rate or amount of interest payable shall be determined in the
rmanner specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

{d} Interest on Partly Paid Notes
In the case of Partly Paid Notes (other than Partly Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon Notes),
interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up nominal amount of such Notes and otherwise as
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

{e) Accrual of interest
Each Note (or, in the case of the redemption of part only of a Note, that part anly of such Naote) will
cease 1o bear interest (if any) from the date for its redemption uniess, upon due presentation
thereof, payment of principai is improperly withheld or refused. In such event, interest wil
continue to accrue as provided in the Trust Deed.

Payments

(@)

Method of payment
Subiect as provided balow:

t payments in a Specified Currency other than euro will be made by credit or transfer {0 an
account in the relevant Specified Currency (which, In the case of a payrment in Japanese Yen
to a non-resident of Japan, shall be a non-resident account) maintained by the payee with,
or by a cheque in such Specified Currency drawn on, a bank in the principal financial centre
of the country of such Spegified Currency {which, if the Specified Currency is New Zealand
dollars, shall be Auckland); and

(i} payments in euro will be made by credit or transfer to a euro account {or any other account
to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the option of the
payee, by a euro chegue.

Payments will be subject in all cases to any fiscal or other laws and reguiations applicable thereto
in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 9.

Presentation of definitive Notes, Receipts and Coupons

Payments of principal in respect of definitive Notes will (subject as provided below) be made in the
manner pravided in paragraph (a) above only against presentation and surrender {(or, in the case
of part payment of any sum due, endorsement} of definitive Notes, and payments of interest in
respect of definitive Notes will {subject as provided below) be made as aforesaid only against
presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement} of
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Coupons, in each case at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States
(which expression, as used herein, means the United States of America (including the States and
the District of Columbia, its territories, its possessions and other areas subject o its jurisdiction)).

Payments of instalments of principal {if any) in respect of definitive Notes, other than the final
instaliment, will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in paragraph (a)
above against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due,
endorsement) of the relevant Receipt in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Payment of
the final instalment will be made in the manner provided in paragraph (a) above only against
presentation and surrender (or, in the ¢ase of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the
relevant Note in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Each Receipt must be presented for
payment of the relevant instalment together with the definitive Note to which it appertains.
Receipts presented without the definitive Note to which they appertain do not constitute valid
obligations of the relevant lssuer. Upon the date on which any definitive Note becomes due and
repayable, unmatured Receipts {if any) relating theratc {whether or not attached) shal! become
void and no payment shall be made in respect thereof.

Fixed Rate Notes in definitive form {other than Dual Currency Notes or Index Linked Notes) should
be presented for payment together with all unmatured Coupons appertaining thereto {which
expression shall for this purpose inciude Coupons falling to be issued on exchange of matured
Talons), failing which the amount of any missing unmatured Coupon (or, in the case of payment
not being made in full, the same proportion of the amount of such missing unmatured Coupon as
the sum so paid bears to the sum due] will be deducted from the sum due for payment. Each
amount of principal so deducted will be paid in the manner menticned above against surrender of
the relative missing Coupon at any time before the expiry of 10 years after the Relevant Date (as
defined in Condition 9) in respect of such principal (whether or not such Coupon would otherwise
have become void under Condition 10) o, if later, five years from the date on which such Coupon
would otherwise have become due, but in no event thereafter.

Upon any Fixed Rate Note in definitive form becoming due and repayable prior to its Maturity
Date, all unmatured Talons (if any) appertaining thereto will become void and no further Coupons
will be issued in respect thereof.

Upon the date on which any Floating Rate Note, Dual Currency Note or Index Linked Interest
Note in definitive form becomes due and repayable, unmatured Coupons and Talons (if any)
relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment or, as the case may
be, exchange for further Coupons shall be made in respect thereof.

if the due date for redemption of any definitive Note is not an Interest Payment Date, interest (if
any) accrued in respect of such Note from (and including) the preceding Interest Payment Date
or, as the case may be, the Interest Commencement Date shall be payable only against surrender
of the relevant definitive Nots.

Payments in respect of Global Notes

Payments of principal and interest (if any) in respect of Notes represented by any Global Note will
{subject as provided below) be made in the manner specified above in relation to definitive Notes
and otherwise in the manner specified in the relevant Global Note against presentation or
surrender, as the case may be, of such Global Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent
outside the United States. A record of each payment made against presentation or surrender of
any Global Note, distinguishing between any payment of principal and any payment of interest,
will be made on such Global Note by the Paying Agent to which it was presented and such record
shall be prima facie evidence that the payment in question has been made.

General provisions applicable to payments

The holder of a Global Note shall be the only person entitled to receive payments in respect of
Notes represented by such Global Note and the relevant issuer or, as the case may be, the
Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) will be discharged by payment to, or to the order
of, the holder of such Globat Note in respect of each amount so paid. Each of the persons shown
in the records of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg as the beneficial holder of a particular
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nominal arnount of Notes represented by such Global Note must ook solely to Eurociear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, for his share of each payment so made by the
relevant Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor {where the relevant Issuer is NWW) to, or to
the order of, the holder of such Global Note.

Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (a) above, if any amount of principal and/or interest
in respect of Notes is payable in U.S. dollars, such U.8. dollar payments of principal and/or
interest in respect of such Notes will be made at the specified office of a Paying Agent in the
United States if:

() the relevant Issuer has appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside the United
States with the reasonable expectation that such Paying Agents would be able to make
payment in U.S. dollars at such specified offices outside the United States of the full amount
of principal and interest on the Notes in the mannar provided above when dug;

iy payment of the full amount of such principal and interest at all such specified offices outside
the United States is illegal or effectively preciuded by exchange controls or other similar
restrictions on the full payment or receipt of principat and interest in U.S. dollars; and

{i) such payment is then permitted under United States law without involving, in the opinion of
the relevant Issuer and (where the relevant issuer is NWW) the Guarantor, adverse tax
consequences te the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant issuer is NWW) the Guarantor.

Payment Day

If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon is not a Payment
Day, the holder thereof shall not be entitied to payment until the next following Payment Day in the
relevant place and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in respect of such
delay. For these purposes, “Payment Day" means any day which {subject to Condition 10) is:

{ii aday on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are
open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency
deposits) in:

(A) the relevant place of presentation;
(B) London;
{C} any Additional Financial Centre specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement; and

{iy either (1) in refation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on
which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets setile payments and are open for
general business (inciuding dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the
principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than the
place of presentation, London and any Additional Financial Centre and which if the Specified
Currency is New Zealand dollars shall be Auckland) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in
euro, a day on which the TARGET System is open.

Interpretation of principal and interest

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions 1o principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed
o0 include, as applicable:

() any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to principal under Condition 3;
{iy the Final Redemption Amourt of the Notes;

(i) the Early Redemption Amount of the Notes;

{iv) the Optional Redemption Amount(s) (if any) of the Notes;

(v} in relation to Notes redeemable in instalments, the Instalment Amaounts;
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vi) in relation to Zero Coupon Notes, the Amortised Face Amount (as defined in Condition
8(ejii); and

(vi)

any premium and any other amounts which may be payable by the relevant Issuer under or
in respect of the Notes.

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed
to include, as applicable, any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to interest
under Condition 9.

8. Redemption and Purchase
(8) Redempticn at maturity

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and in each case cancelled as specified below, each
Note will be redeemed by the relevant Issuer at its Final Redemption Amount specified in, or
determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Pricing Supplement in the relevant
Specified Currency on the Maturity Date.

{b) Redesmption for tax reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the relevant Issuer in whole, but not in part, at any
fime (if the Note is neither a Floating Rate Note nor an Index Linked Interest Note) or on any
Interest Payment Date (if the Note is either a Floating Rate Note or an Index Linked Interest Note},
on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the Trustee and the Principal Paying
Agent and, in accordance with Condition 15, the Noteholders (which notice shall be irrevocabie),
if the relevant Issuer satisfies the Trustee immediately before the giving of the notice referred to
above that on the occasion of the next payment due under the Notes, the relevant Issuer has or
will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided or referred to in Condition 9 or the
Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) would be unable for reasons outside its control 16
procure payment by the relevant Issuer and in making payment itself would be required to pay
such additional amounts, in each case as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or
regulations of the United Kingdom or any political subdivision of, or any authority in, or of, the
United Kingdom having power to tax, or any change in the application or official interpretation of
such laws or regulations, which change or amendment becomes effective on or after the lssue
Date of the first Tranche of the Notes, provided that no such notice of redemption shall be given
earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which the relevant lssuer or, as the case may be,
the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) would be obliged to pay such additional
amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes then due.

Prior to the publication of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Condition, the relevant Issuer
shall deliver 10 the Trustee a certificate signed by two Directors of the relevant Issuer or, as the
case may be, two Directors of the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) stating that the
relevant Issuer is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of the change or
amendment (as referred to above) which has occurred (irrespective of whether such change ar
amendment is then effective) describing the facts leading thereto and accompanied by an opinion
in a form satisfactory to the Trustee of independent legal advisers of recognised standing to the
effect that such change or amendment has occurred (irrespective of whether such change or
amendment is then effective) and the relevant issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor
(where the refevant [ssuer is NWW) has or will become obliged to pay such additional amounts as
a result of such change or amendment. The Trustee shall be entitled to accept such certificate
and opinion as sufficient evidence of the satisfaction of the conditions precedent set out above, in
which event they shall be conclusive and binding on the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the
Couponholders.

Notes redeemed pursuant to this Condition 8(b) will be redeemed at their Early Redemption
Amount referred to in paragraph (e} beiow together {if appropriate) with interest accrued to (but
excluding) the date of redemption.
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(@)

Redemption at the option of the relevant Issuer (Issuer Cail)

If lssuer Call is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the relevant lssuer may, having
given:

 not less than 30 nor more than 90 days’ notice to the Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 15; and

(i) not less than 15 days before the giving of the notice referred to in (i), notice to the Trustee
and the Principal Paying Agent;

fwhich notices shall be irrevocable and shall specify the date fixed for redemption), redeem all or
some only of the Notes then outstanding on any Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional
Redemption Amount(s) specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable
Pricing Supplement together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the relevant
Optional Redemption Date. Any such redsmption must be of a nominal amount equal to the
Minimum Redemption Amount or a Higher Redemption Amount. In the case of a partial
redemption of Notes, the Notes to be redeemed {“Redeemed Notes”) will be selected individually
by lot, in the case of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes, and in accordance with
the rules of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, in the case of Redesemed Notes
represented by a Global Note, not more than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption (such
date of selection being hereinafter called the “Selection Date”). In the case of Redeemed Notes
represented by definitive Notes, a list of the serial numbers of such Redeemed Notes will be
published in accordance with Condition 15 not less than 15 days prior to the date fixed for
redemption. The aggregate nominal amount of Redeamed Notes represented by definitive Notes
shail bear the same proportion to the aggregate nominat amount of all Redeemed Notes as the
aggregate nominal amount of definitive Notes outstanding bears to the aggregate nominal
amount of the Notes outstanding, in each case on the Selection Date, provided that, if necessary,
appropriate adjustments shall be made o such nominal amounts to ensure that each represents
an integral multiple of the Specified Denomination, No exchange of the relevant Global Note will
De permitted during the period from {and including) the Selection Date to (and including) the date
fixed for redemption pursuant to this paragraph (¢) and notice to that effect shall be given by the
relevant Issuer to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 15 at least five days prior to the
Selection Date,

Redemption at the aption of the Noteholders (Investor Put)

If Invester Put is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, upon the hoider of any Note
giving to the relevant Issuer in accordance with Condition 15 not less than 15 nor more than 30
days’ notice, the relevant issuer will, upon the expiry of such notice, redeem, subject to, and in
accordance with, the terms specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, in whole (but not in
part), such Note on the Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional Redemption Amount
{ogether, if appropriate, with interest accrued to {but exciuding) the Cptional Redemption Date.

[f this Note is in definitive form, to exercise the right to require redemption of this Note the holder
of this Note must defiver such Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent at any time during
normal business hours of such Paying Agent falling within the notice period, accompanied by a
duly completed and signed notice of exercise in the form {for the time being current) obtainable
from any specified office of any Paying Agent (& "Put Notice™} and in which the holder must
specify a bank account (or, if payment is required fo be made by chegue, an address) to which
payrment is to be made under this Condition.

Early Redemption Amounts

For the purpose of paragraph {b) above and Condition 11, the Notes will be redeemed at the Early
Redemption Amount calculated as follows:

i} inthe case of Notes with a Final Redemption Amount egual to the Issue Price, at the Final
Redemption Amount thereof;

(i) inthe case of Notes (other than Zero Coupon Notes but including Instalment Notes and
Partty Paid Notes) with a Finat Redemption Amount which is or may be less or greater than
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the Issue Price or which is payable in a Specified Currency other than that in which the Notes
are denominated, at the amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the
applicable Pricing Supplement or, if no such amount or manner is so specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement, at their nominal amount; or

(i) inthe case of Zerc Coupon Notes, at an amount {the “Amortised Face Amount”) equal to the
sum of:

(A} the Reference Price; and

{B) the product of the Accrual Yield (compounded annually) being applied to the Reference
Price from (and including) the Issue Date of the first tranche of the Notes to (but
excluding) the date fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which
such Notes become due and repayable.

Where such calculation is to be made for a pericd which is not a whole number of years, it
shall be made (1) in the ¢ase of a Zero Coupon Note other than a Zero Coupon Note payable
in euro, on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each and (2) in
the case of a Zero Coupon Note payable in euro, on the basis of the actual number of days
elapsed divided by 365 (or, if any of the days elapsed falls in a leap year, the sum of (x) the
number of those days falling in a leap year divided by 366 and {y) the number of those days
falling in a non-leap year divided by 365) or (in either case) on such other calculation basis as
may be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

instalments

Instalment Notes will be redeemed in the Instaiment Amounts and on the Instalment Dates. in the
case of early redemption, the Early Redemption Amount will be determined pursuant to
paragraph {e) above.

Partly Paid Notes

Partly Paid Notes will be redeemed, whether at maturity, early redemption or otherwise, in
accordance with the provisions of this Condition and the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Purchases

The relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Subsidiary (as
defined in the Trust Deed) of the relevant lssuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the
Guarantor may at any time purchase Notes (provided that, in the case of definitive Notes, all
unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons appertaining thereto are purchased therawith) at any
price in the open market or otherwise. If purchases are made by tender, tenders must be
available to all Noteholders alike. Such Notes may be held, reissuex, resold or, at the option of the
relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor, surrendered to any Paying
Agent for cancellation.

Cancellation

All Notes which are redeemed will forthwith be cancelled {together with all unmatured Receipts,
Coupons and Talons attached thereto or surrendered therewith at the time of redemption). Al
Notes so cancelled and Notes purchased and cancelled pursuant to paragraptt (h) above
{together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons cancelled therewith) shalt be
forwarded to the Principal Paying Agent and cannot be reissued or resold.

Late payment on Zero Coupon Notes

If the amount payable in respect of any Zero Coupon Note upon redemption of such Zero
Coupon Note pursuant to paragraph (a), (b}, (¢) or (d) above or upon its becoming due and
repayable as provided in Condition 171 is improperly withheld or refused, the amount due and
repayable in respect of such Zero Coupon Note shall be the amount calculated as provided in
paragraph ()i} above as though the references therein to the date fixed for the redemption or
the date upon which such Zero Coupon Note becomes due and repayable were replaced by
references to the date which is the eatlier of:
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(i the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Zero Coupon Note have been paid;
and

iy five days after the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable in respact of such
Zero Coupon Notes has been received by the Principal Paying Agent or the Trustee and
notice to that effect has been given to the Noteholders in accerdance with Condition 15.

9. Taxation

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes, Receipts and Coupons by the relevant issuer
or {where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the relevant lssuer or the Guarantor will be made without withholding
or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of whatever nature imposed or levied
by ar on behalf of the United Kingdom or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having
power 10 tax unless such withholding or deduction is required by law, In such avent, the retevant Issuer or,
as the case may be, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) will pay such additional amounts as
shall be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the holders of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons
after such withholding or deduction shall equal the respective amounts of principal and interest which
would otherwise have been receivable in respect of the Notes, Receipts or Goupons, as the case may be,
in the absence of such withholding or deduction; except that no such additional amounts shall be payable
with respect to any Note, Receipt or Coupon presented for payment;

() by or on behalf of a holder who is liable for such taxes or dufies in respect of such Note, Receipt or
Coupon by reason of his having some connection with the United Kingdom cther than the mere
holding of such Note, Receipt or Coupon; or

(il inthe United Kingdom; or

{it to, or to a third party on behalf of, a holder who would nct be liable to such withholding or deduction if
such holder had made a declaration of nan-residence or similar claim for exemption to any authority of
or in the United Kingdom; or

vy more than 30 days after the Relevart Date {as defined below) except to the extent that the holder
thereof would have been entitted 1o an additionat amount on presenting the same for payment on such
thirtieth day assuming that day to have been a Payment Day.

As used herein, the “Relevant Date” means the date on which such payment first becomes due, except
that, if the full amount of the moneys payable has not been duly received by the Trustee or the Principal
Paying Agent on or prior to such due date, it means the date on which, the full amount of such moneys
having been so received, notice to that effect is duly given to the Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 15,

10. Prescription

The Notes, Receipts and Coupons will become void unless presented for payment within a period of 10

years {in the case of principal) and five years (in the case of interest) after the Relevant Date (as defined in
Condition 9) therefor.

There shall not be included in any Coupon sheet issued on exchange of a Talon any Coupon the claim for
payment in respect of which would be void pursuant to this Condition or Condition 7{b} or any Talon which
would be void pursuant to Gondition 7(b).

11. Events of Default

{a) The Trustee at its discretion may, and if so requested in writing by the holders of at least one-quarter in
principal arnount of the Notes then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the
Noteholders shall, {but, in the case of the happening of any of the events mentioned in paragraphs (i},
{iii}, (v}, (vi) and (vii} below in relation to the relevant issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is
NWW) and {iii) to {vii) below (inciusive) in relation to a Material Subsidiary, oniy if the Trustee shall have
certified in writing that such event is, in its opinion, materially prejudicial to the interests of the
Noteholders) give notice 10 the relevant Issuer that the Notes are, and they shall accordingly thereupon
become, immediately due and repayable at their Early Redemption Amount, together with accrued
interest as provided in the Trust Deed, if any of the following events shall occur and be continuing:
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{v)

(v}

Vi)

(vii)

if default is made by the relevant issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor for a

period of 14 days or more in the payment of any principal or interest due in respect of the Notes
or any of them; or

if default is made by the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor in the
performance or observance of any material obligation, condition or provision binding upon it
under the Notes or the Trust Deed (other than any obligation for the payment of any principat or
interest in respect of the Notes) and, except where such default is, in the opinion of the Trustee,
not capable of remedy when no such continuation and notice as is hereinafter mentioned will be
required, such default continues for 30 days (or such longer period as the Trustee may permit)
after written niotice thereof has been given by the Trustee to the relevant Issuer or, as the case
may be, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) requiring the same to be remedied; or

(1) any indebtedness for moneys borrowed (as defined below) of the relevant lIssuer, the
Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary or (2) any present or
future guarantee for, or indemnity in respect of, any indebtedness for moneys borrowed of any
person given by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any
Material Subsidiary where the relevant indebtedness for moneys borrowed when aggregated with
all other indebtedness for moneys borrowed in respect of which one or more other events
referred to in this paragraph (i) shall have occurred exceeds whichever is the greater of
£30,000,000 (or the equivalent in other currencies as determined by the Trustee) and two per
cent. of the Adjusted Capital and Reserves:

) is not paid or repaid or honoured when due or within any applicable grace period; or

(i) is declared to be or becomes enforceabie, redeernable or repayable prior to the due date for
payment thereof as a result of any actual default by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor {where
the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary, as the case may be, or as a result of
an event of default (howsoever described) in relation thereto, unless such default or event of
default is waived or remedied (to the satisfaction of the Trustee) within thirty business days,

except, in any such case, where there is a bona fide dispute as to payment; or

If an order is made or a resolution is passed for the winding up of, or an adrinistration order is
made in relation to, the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any
Material Subsidiary (save, in the case of a Material Subsidiary, (i) with the prior consent of the
Trustee or the prior sanction of an Extracrdinary Resolution for the purposes of or in connection
with an amalgamation or reconstruction, or (i) a voluntary solvent winding-up where surplus
assets are available for distribution); or

if an encumbrancer takes possessicn or an administrative or other receiver or an administrator is
appointed of the whole or any substantial part of the undertaking, property and assets of the
relevant ssuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant issuer is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary or if a
distress, execution or other process is levied or enforced upon or sued out against the whole or
any substantial part of the assets of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer
is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary and, in the case of any of the foregoing events, is not
discharged within 60 days or such longer period as the Trustee may allow; or

if the relevant lssuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary
is Unable to pay its debts within the meaning of Section 123(2) of the insolvency Act 1986; or

if the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary
shall cease to carry on the whole or substantially the whole of its business, save in any case for
the purposes of amalgamation, merger, consolidation, reorganisation, reconstruction or other
similar arrangement (a) not involving or arising out of the insolvency of the relevant Issuer, the
Guarantor {where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or a Material Subsidiary and under which all or
substantially all of its assets are transferred to the relevant Issuer (in the case of the Guarantor
{where the relevant issuer is NWW) or a Material Subsidiary) or {where the relevant Issuer is NWW)
the Guarantor (in the case of NWW or a Material Subsidiary) or one or more of the relevant
Issuer’s or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor's Subsidiaries or to a transferee or
transferees which is or are, or immediately upon such fransfer become(s), a Material Subsidiary or
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Material Subsidiaries provided that this exception (a} shall not apply where the transferor
company is the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant issuer is NWW) the Guarantor unless assets
comprising the maijor part by value of the assets owned by the relevant transferor company
immediately prior to such transfer are transferred to a single transferee company and
contemporaneously with such transfer {1) where the transferor company is the relevant Issuer
{y) such transferee company assumes (to the satisfaction of the Trustee) all the obligations of the
transferor company as principal debtor in respect of the Notes and (z) such transferor company or
{where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor unconditionally and imevocably guarantees (to
the satisfaction of the Trustes) the payment of all amounts payable by such transferee company
as the new principal debtor and (2} where the transferor company is the Guarantor, such
transferee company guarantees {io the satisfaction of the Trustee) the payment of all amounts
payable by NWW as the relevant issuer in respect of the Notes or () under which all or
substantially all of its assets are transferred o a third party or parties {(whether asscciates or nol)
for full consideration on an arm's length basis or (¢} the terms of which have previously been
approved by the Trustee in writing or by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Notehclders provided
that neither the relevant Issuer nor the Guarantor (where the relevant lssuer is NWW) nor any
Material Subsidiary shall be deemed to have ceased to carry on the whole or substantially the
whole of its business solely by reason of any forced divestiture imposed by any government or
regulatory body or in consequence of the loss of the Appointment or the PES Licence; or

in the case of Notes issued by NWW, the Guarantee ceases to be, or is claimed by the Guarantor
not to be, in full force and effect.

For the purposes of this Condition:

“Accourts” means a consolidation of the annual statutory accounts of the relevant issuer or (where
the relevant lssuer is NWW) the Guarantor and {(in each case} its Subsidiary Undertakings as prepared,
audited and reported upon by the Auditors in accordance with the historical cost convention method
as medified, if applicabie, by the revaiuation of land and buildings and ctherwise in accordance with
United Kingdom generally accepted accounting practices and principles;

“Adjusted Capitat and Reserves” means at any time a sum equatl to the aggregate of:

(i)

(i)

the amount paid up or credited as paid up on the issued share capital of the relevant lssuer or
{where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guaranior, and

the amounts standing o the credit of the capital and revenue reserves of the relevant lssuer or
(where the relevant lesuer is NWW) the Guarantor and its Subsidiary Undertakings (including any
share premium account and capital redemption reserve) after adding thereto any balance
standing to the credit of the profit and loss account;

all based on the consolidated balance sheet of the relevant lasuer or (where the relevant Issuer is

NWW) the Guarantor and its Subsidiary Undertakings as contained in the then latest Accounts but
after;

U
(i)

(i)

excluding all sums set aside for taxation (whether in respect of deferred taxation or otherwise);

making such adjustments as may be appropriate in respect of any variation in the amount of such
share capital or such reserves subseciuent to the relevant balance sheet date and so that for this
purpose share capital allotted shall be deemed to have been issued and if any issue or proposed
issue of shares by the relevant lssuer or the Guarantor {where the relavant Issuer is NWW) for
cash has been underwritten then such shares shall be deemed to have been issued and the
amount (including any premium) of the subscription moneys payable in respect thereof (not being
moneys payable fater than six months after the date of allotment) shall to the extent so
underwritten be deemed to have been paid up on the date when the issue of such shares was
underwritten {or, if such underwriting was conditional, on the date when it became unconditional
in all respects),

making such adjustments as may be appropriate in respect of any distributions declared,
recommended or made by the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant lssuer is
NWW) or any of their Subsidiary Undertakings out of profits earmed up to and including the date of
such balance sheet {0 the extent that such distribution is not provided for in such balance sheet;
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{iv) making such adjustments as may be appropriate in respect of any variation in the interests of the
relevant Issuer or the Guaranter (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) in their respective Subsidiary
Undertakings (including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any acquisition of a
new Subsidiary Undertaking or disposal of an interest which causes an undertaking to cease to
be a Subsidiary Undertaking) since the date of such balance sheet;

fv} if the calculation is required for the purposes of or in connection with a transaction under or in
connection with which any company is to become or ceasa to be a Subsidiary Undertaking of the
relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW), making all such adjustments
as would be appropriate if such transaction had been carried into effect;

{(vi} excluding all minority interests and other third party interests in Subsidiary Undertakings of the
refevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW);

{vi) deducting any balance to the debit of the profit and loss account;
{viil) deducting all amounts (if any) attributable to goodwill or any other intangible assets;

{ix} excluding such part of the interests of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant
Issuer is NWW) or any of their respective Subsidiary Undertakings in an associated company {as
defined in the Trust Deed), not being a Subsidiary Undertaking of the relevant Issuer or the
Guarantor {where the relevant Issuer is NWW), as is atiributable to any post-acquisition
undistributed profits and reserves, but including such interests at original cost or, if lower, book
value;

() deducting (if not otherwise excluded) such amount as the Auditors shall consider appropriate in
respect of any deferred taxation liabilities on the net amount by which the fixed assets of the
relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) and their respective
Subsidiary Undertakings shall have been written up as a result of any revaluation, and for this
purpose a transfer of any assets by the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer
is NWW) to any of their respective Subsidiary Undertakings, or by any of their respective
Subsidiary Undertakings to the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor fwhere the relevant Issuer is
NWW) or another of their respective Subsidiary Undertakings, for a consideration in excess of the
book value thereof shall be deemed to be a writing up of the book value of such asset as a result
of a revaluation;

(x) deducting therefrom all amounts attributable {whether by way of share or loan capital or
otherwise) to the interests of the relevant issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is
NWW) and their respective Subsidiary Undertakings (other than Excluded Subsidiaries) in
Excluded Subsidiaries; and

(xii) making such other adjustments {if any} as the Auditors may consider appropriate;
and so that no amount shall be included or excluded more than once in the same calculation;

The Trust Deed provides that, if there is a material change in generally accepted United Kingdom
accounting practices or principles as adopfed and applied in the Accounts, the Issuer will, at the request of
. the Trustee, after consuffation with the Issuer, procure the Auditors lo restate the Accounts in accordance
with generally accepted United Kingdom accounting practices and/or principles applied in respect of the
Accounts for the year ended 31 March, 1998 and the Adjusted Capital and Reserves shall be calculated
accordingly.

The certificate of the Auditors as to the amount of the Adjusted Capital and Reserves at any time shall, in
the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on all parties.

*Appointment” means the Instrument of Appointment dated 24 August, 1889 under Sections 11 and 14 of
the Water Act 1989 (as varied from time to time) appointing North West Water Limited as a water
undertaker and sewerage undertaker;

*Auditors” means the auditors for the time being of the relevant Issuer or, in the event of their being unable
or unwilling to carry out any action requested of them pursuant to the Trust Deed, such cther firm of
chartered accountants as the Trustee may in writing nominate or approve for the purpose;
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“Excluded Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary of the relevant issuer or (whare the relevant [ssuer is NWW)
the Guarantor () which is a single purpose company whose principal assets and business are constituted
by the ownership, acquisition, development and/or operation of an asset, (i) none of whose liabilities in
respect of the financing of such ownership, acquisition, development and/or operation of an asset is
subject to any recourse whatsoever to any member of the relevant Group other than an Excluded
Subsidiary, and (i) which has been designated as such by the relevant Issuer or {where the relevant Issuer
is NWW) the Guarantor by written notice to the Trustee; provided that the relevant lssuer or (where the
relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor may give written nofice to the Trustee at any time that any Excluded
Subsidiary is no longer an Excluded Subsidiary, whereupon it shall cease to be an Excluded Subsidiary,

“Group” means the relevant Issuer or {where the relevant lssuer is NWW) the Guarantor and their respective
Subsidiaries and “mermber of the Group” shall be construed accordingly;

“indebtedness for moneys borrowed” means any present or future indebtedness (being principal, premiurn
or interest) for or in respect of (a) all moneys borrowed, (b) liakilities under or in respect of any acceptance or
acceptance credit and (<) all notes, bonds, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock or other securities
offered, issued or distriputed whether by way of public offer, private placing, acquisition consideration or
otherwise and whether issued for cash or in whole or in part for a consideration other than cash which is not
for the time being owned by the relevant Issuer or (where the relavant issuer is NWW) the Guarantor or any
of their respactive Subsidiary Undertakings and which doss not amount to Project Finance Indebtedness;

“Material Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary of the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant 'ssuer is NWW) the
Guarantor (not being an Excluded Subsidiary) {if whose gross revenues earned from outside the Group or
whose gross assets (in each case consclidated in respect of a Subsidiary which itself has Subsidiaries, and
in each case attributable to the relevant lssuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor) all as
shown in the latest audited accounts {consolidated or, as the case may be, unconsolidated) of such
Subsidiary represent 20 per cent. or more of the consolidated gross revenues or, as the case may be,
consolidated gross assets (in each case attributable to the sharehoiders of its ultimate parent) of the
relevant [ssuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor and in each case their respective
Subsidiary Undertakings (other than Excluded Subsidiaries) all as shown in the latest Accounts; or (i} to
which is transferred alt or substantially all of the business, undertaking or assets of a Subsidiary which
immediately prior to such transfer is a Material Subsidiary, whereupon the transferor Subsidiary shall
immediately cease to be a Material Subsidiary and the transferee Subsidiary shall immediately become a
Material Subsidiary under this sub-paragraph (i} but shall cease to be a Material Subsidiary upon
publication of its next audited accounts unless it would then be a Material Subsidiary under {f) above. A
report by the Auditors (whether or not addressed 1o the Trustee) that in their opinion a Subsidiary is or is not
or was or was not at any particular time a Material Subsidiary shall, in the absence of manifest error, be
conclusive and binding on all parties;

“PES Licence” means the public electricity supply licence granted by the Secretary of State for Energy to
NORWEB pic;

“Project Finance Indebtedness” means any indetitedness for moneys borrowed to finance the ownership,
acquisition, development and/or operation of an asset (whether or not an asset of a member of the Group):

{a) which is incurred by an Excluded Subsidiary; or

(b) in respect of which the person or persons to whom any such indebtedness for moneys borrowed is or
may be owed by the relevant borrower (whether or not a member of the Group) has or have no
recourse whatsoever to any member of the Group (other than an Excluded Subsidiary) for the
repayment thereof other than:

{ recourse for amounts limited to the cash flow or net cash flow (other than historic cash flow or
historic net cash flow) from such asset; and/or

{i) recourse for the purpose only of enabling amounts to be claimed in respect of such indebtedness
for meneys borrowed in an enfoercement of any encumbrance given by such borrower over such
asset or the income, ¢cash flow or other proceeds deriving therefrom (or given by any shareholder
or the like in the borrower over its shares or the like in the capital of the borrower) to secure such
indebtedness for moneys borrowed, provided that (1} the extent of such recourse to such
borrower is limited solely to the amount of any recoveries made on any such enforcement, and (2)
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such person or persons is/are not entitled, by virtue of any right or claim arising out of or in
connection with such indebtedness for moneys borrowed, to commence proceedings for the
winding up or dissolution of the borrower or to appoint or procure the appointment of any
receiver, trustee or similar person or officer in respect of the bomrower or any of its assets (save for
the assets the subject of such encumbrance); and/or

{i) recourse to such borrower generally, or directly or indirectly to a member of the Group, under any
form of assurance, undertaking or support, which recourse is limited to a claim for damages
{other than liquidated damages and damages required to be calculated in a specified way) for
breach of an obligation by the person against whom such recourse is available (not being a
payment obligation or an obligation to procure payment by another or an indemnity in respect
thereof or any obligation to comply or to procure compliance by ancther with any financial ratios
or other tests of financial condition);

“Subsidiary” means a subsidiary within the meaning of Section 736 of the Companies Act 1985; and

“Subsidiary Undertaking” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 258 of the Companies Act 1985
{but, in relation to each Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor, shall exclude any
Subsidiary Undertaking whose accounts are not included in the then latest Accounts, or (in the case of a
Subsidiary Undertaking which has first become a Subsidiary Undertaking of a member of the Group since
the date as at which such Accounts were prepared) would not have been so included or consolidated if it
had become s0 on or before that date).

12. Replacement of Notes, Receipts, Coupons and Talons

Should any Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon be lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it may be
replaced at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent upon payment by the claimant of such costs
and expenses as may be incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity
as the Issuer may reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons must be
surrendered before replacements will be issued.

13. Agents
The names of the inittal Paying Agents and their initial specified offices are set out below,

The Issuer is entitled to vary or terminate the appeintment of any Paying Agent and/or appoint additional or
other Paying Agents and/or approve any change in the specified office through which any Paying Agent
acts, provided that:

() there will at all times be a Principal Paying Agent;

iy so long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange or admitted to listing by any other relevant
authority, there will at all times be a Paying Agent with a specified office in such place as may be
required by the rules and regulations of the relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority; and

(i) there wil at all times be a Paying Agent with a specified office in a city approved by the Trustee in
continental Europe.

In acting under the Agency Agreement, the Paying Agents act solely as agents of the relevant issuer and
(where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor and, in certain circumstances specified therein, of the
Trustes and do not assume any obligation to, or relationship of trust with, any Noteholders, Receiptholders
or Couponholders.

14. Exchange of Talons

On and after the Fixed Interest Date or the Interest Payment Date, as appropriate, on which the final
Coupon comprised in any Coupon sheet matures, the Talon (if any) forming part of such Coupon sheet may
be surrendered at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent or any other Paying Agent in exchange
for a further Coupen sheet including (if such further Coupon shest does not include Coupons to (and
including) the final date for the payment of interest due in respect of the Note to which it appertains) a
further Talon, subject to the provisions of Condition 10,
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15. Notices

All notices regarding the Notes wilt be deemed to be validly given if published in a ieading English language
daily newspaper of general circuiation in London. It is expected that such pubtication will be made in the
Financial Times in London. The relevant issuer shall also ensure that notices are duly published in a manner
which complies with the rules and regulations of any stock exchange or any other relevant authority on
which the Notes are for the time being fisted or by which they have been admitted 1o listing. Any such notice
will be deemed to have been given on the date of the first publication or, where required to be published in
maore than one newspaper, on the date of the first publication in all required newspapers. if publication as
provided above is not practicable, notice will be given in such other manner, and will be deemed to have
been given on such date, as the Trustee may approve.

Until such time as any definitive Notes are issued, there may, so long as any Global Notes representing the
Notes are held in their entirety on behalf of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, be substituted for
such publication in such newspaper(s) the delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxernbourg for communication by them to the holders of the Notes and, in addition, for so long as any
Notes are listed on a stock exchange or admitted to listing by any other relevant authority and the rules of
that stock exchange or other relevant authority so require, such notice will be published in a daily
newspaper of general circulation in the place or places required by that stock exchange or other relevant
authority. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the holders of the Notes on the seventh
day after the day on which the said notice was given to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by fodging the same, together (in the
case of any Noie in definitive form) with the relative Note or Notes, with the Principal Paying Agent. Whilst
any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note, such notice may be given by any holder of a Note to the
Principal Paying Agent through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxernbourg, as the case may be, in such
manner as the Principal Paying Agent and Eurcclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may
be, may approve for this purpose.

16. Meetings of Noteholders, Modification and Waiver

The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of the Noteholders to consider any matter
affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a modification of the
Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or any of the provisions of the Trust Deed. Such a meeting may be
convened by ihe relevant tssuer or the Trustee and shall be convened by the relevant issuer at the request
of Noteholders holding not less than five per cent. in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being
outstanding. The quorum at any such mesting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution is one or more
persons holding or representing a clear majority in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being
outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting one or more persons being or representing Noteholders whatever
the nominal amount of the Notes so held or represented, excapt that at any mesting the business of which
includes the modification of certain provisions of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or the Trust Deed
{including modifying the date of maturity of the Notes or any date for payment of interest thereon, reducing
or canceliing the amount of principal or the rate or amount of interest payable in respect of the Notes or
altering the currency of payment of the Notes, the Receipts or the Coupons), the quorum shall be one or
more persons holding or representing not less than two-thirds in nominal amount of the Notes for the time
being cutstanding, or at any adjourned such meeting one or more persons holding or representing not less
than one-third in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding. An Extraordinary Resolution
passed at any meeting of the Noteholders shall be binding on all the Noteholders, whether or not they are
present at the meeting, and on all Receiptholders and Couponrholders.

The Trustee may agree, without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, to:
) any modification of any of the provisions of these Terms and Conditions, the Notes, the Receipts,
the Coupons or the Trust Deed which is nat in the opinion of the Trustee materially prejudicial to
the interests of the Noteholders; or
(i) any modification of the provisions of any of these Terms and Conditions, the Notes, the Receipts,
the Coupons or the Trust Deed which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to
correct a manifest error or to comply with mandatory provisions of law.

The Trustee may also agree, without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponhoiders, 10
the waiver or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of any of these Terms and Conditions or any
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of the provisions of the Trust Deed or determine, without any such consent as aforesaid, that any Event of
Default or Potential Event of Default (as defined in the Trust Deed) shall not be treated as such, which in any
suich case is nat, in the opinion of the Trustee, materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders.

In connection with the exercise by it of any of its trusts, powers, authorities or discretions (including, but
without limitation, any modification, waiver, authorisation or determination}, the Trustee shall have regard to
the general interests of the Noteholders as a c¢lass but shall not have regard to any interests arising from
circumstances particular to individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders (whatever their
number) and, in particular, but without limitation, shall not have regard to the consequences of such
exercise for individual Notehaolders, Receiptholders or Couponholders {whatever their number) resutting
from their being for any purpose domiciled or resident in, or otherwise connected with, or subject to the
jurisdiction of, any particular territory and the Trustee shall not be entitied to require, nor shall any
Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder be entitled to claim, from the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor
(where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any other person any indemnification or payment in respect of any tax
consequence of any such exercise upon individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponhelders except,
in the case of the relevant Issuer and (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor, to the extent
provided for in Condition 9 and/or any undertaking given in addition to, or in substitution for, Condition 9
pursuant to the Trust Deed.

Any such modification shall be binding on the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders
and, unless the Trustee otherwise agrees, any such modification shall be notified to the Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 15 as soon as practicable thereafter.

17. Indemnification of the Trustee and its Contracting with the relevant Issuer and (where the
relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor

The Trust Deed contains provisions for the indemnification of the Trustee and for its relief from
responsibility, including provisions relieving it from taking action unless indemnified to its satisfaction.

The Trust Deed also contains provisions pursuant to which the Trustee is entitled, infer alia, (i} to enter into
business transactions with the refevant Issuer and/or {(where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor
and/or any of the Guarantor’s other Subsidiaries and to act as trustee for the holders of any other securities
issued or guaranteed by, or relating to, the relevant Issuer and/or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the
Guarantor and/or any of the Guarantor’s other Subsidiaries, (i) to exercise and enforce its rights, compiy
with its obligations and perform its duties under or in relation to any such transactions or, as the case may
be, any such trusteeship without regard to the interests of, or consequences for, the Noteholders,
Receiptholders or Couponholders, and (i) to retain and not be liable to account for any profit made or any
other amount or benefit received thereby or in connection therewith.

18. Further Issues

The relevant Issuer is at liberty from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders
or the Couponholders to ¢create and issue further notes having terms and conditions the same as the Notes
or the same in all respects save for the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon and so that
the same shall be consclidated and form a single Series with the cutstanding Notes. The Trust Deed
contains provisions for convening a single meeting of the Noteholders and the holders of Notes of other
Series in certain circumstances where the Trustee so decides.

19. Substitution

The Trustee may agree, without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders or the Couponholders,
to the substitution at any time or times:

(i of any Subsidiary of United Utilities PLC in place of United Utilities PLC as principal debtor,
subject to the irrevocable and uncenditional guarantee of United Utiiities PLC; or

(i} of any Subsidiary of NORWEB pic in place of NORWEB plc as principal debtor, subject to the
irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of NORWEB pic; or

(i) of the Guarantor in place of NWW (in which case the Guarantee of the Guarantor shall cease and
determing) or any other Subsidiary of the Guaranter as principal debtor subject, in the case of any
such other Subsidiary of the Guarantor, to the irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of the
Guarantor.
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Any such substitution shall also be subject to the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, including a provision

to the effect that the Trustee shall have received confirmation in writing from each rating agency which, at
. the request of the relevant Issuer, shall have assigned a credit rating to the Notes that such substitution by
itself and the circumstances pertaining to the substitution will not result in a downgrading of the then
current credit rating assigned to the Notes by such rating agency.

20. Governing Law

The Trust Deed (including the Guarantes), the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons are governed by, and
shall be construed in accardance with, English law.

21. Contracts {Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

No rights are conferred on any person by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1998 to
enforce any term of this Note but this does not affect any right or remedy of any person which exists oris
available apart from that Act.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

_ The net proceeds from each issue of Notes will be applied by the relevant Issuer for its general corporate
- purposes.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUERS AND THE GUARANTOR
UNITED UTILITIES PLC (ISSUER)

United Utilities PLC {the “Company”) is the hoiding company of a multi-utility business in the UK, The
Cormpany, previously called North West Water Group PLC, was incorporated and registered in England
and Wales on 1 April, 1983 and provides water and wastewater services in North West England through its
wholly owned subsidiary, North West Water Limited {“North West Water”), In November 1995, North West
Water Group PLC acquired all of the issued share capital of NORWER plc (“Norweb”), who was at the time
the distributor and supplier of electricity in North West England, to form a multi-utility group. Shortly after the
acquisition of NORWERB ple, North West Water Group PLC changed its narme to United Utilities PLC.

rollowing the sale of the energy and gas supply business (Norweb ENERG in August 2000, United Utilities
PLC is currently organised into five operating businesses {through its wholly owned subsidiaries): water and
wastewater {North West Water Uimited), electricity distribution (NORWEB plc), telecommunications
{Norweb Telecom Limited), business process outsourcing (Vertex Data Science Limited) and water,
wastewater and electricity distribution and supply outside England and Wales (United Utilities International
Limited).

Effective from October 2000 it has been anhounced that the United Utilities group will be reorganised into
five businesses: licensed asset managernent {ihe asset management activities of North West Water and
Norweb Distribution), contract asset management {incorporating United Utilities International), customer
sales {the water services sales activities of North West Water), Vertex and Norweb Telecom.

NORTH WEST WATER LIMITED (GUARANTOR) AND NORTH WEST WATER FINANCE PLC
(ISSUER)

North West Water Finance PLC {*“NWW") is a wholly owned subsidiary of North West Water. NWW was
incorporated and registered in England and Wates on 14 October, 1996, The purpose of NWW is to raise
finance for the activities of North West Water. The liabilities under the Programme are uncondiiionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by North West Water.

WATER AND WASTEWATER

North West Water provides water and wastewater services to approximately 2.9 miliion customer premises
{domestic, commercial and industrial) in North West England, which has a population of approximately 7
rillion.

Water services
Water supply

North West Water obtains water from 305 sources including reservoirs, rivers and aquifers. The reservoirs
have storage capacities ranging up to almost 85,000 megalitres. North West Water enjoys the advantage of
having the rmajority of its direct reservoirs in the uplands of the Lake District, an area of North West England
which enjoys a higher than average annual rainfall for England, and the Pennine hills on the eastern edge of
North West England, whereas the major population centres in North West England are in the lowlands of
Merseyside, Greater Manchester, Lancashire and Cheshire. As a result, a significart proportion of water
supplied by North West Water flows freely by gravity and does not need to be pumped.

Water treatment and distribution

North West Water operates 146 primary water treatment works. All water supplied receives treatment with
a view to meeting the appropriate standards determined by the Drinking Water inspectorate, the
government regulator of drinking water quality in England and Wales. The type of treatment varies from
disinfection only for some borehole and stream sources, to more complex processes using coagulation,
clarification and activated carbon absorption and ozonation for some lowland waters. North West Water
also employs a number of new treatment processes including membrane microfittration. North West Water
monitors water guality by analysing samples regularly for both microbiclogical and chemical parameters.
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North West Water delivers on average 2,000 megalitres of water per day to its customers through a
network of approximately 42,000 kilometres of agqueducts, trunk and distribution mains, 479 service
reservoirs and 14 water towers.

Wastewater services
Collection

Under its licence, North West Water is responsible for the collection, treatment and disposal of domestic
sewage, trade efflusnt and surface water in North West England. Surface water, mainly from groundwater
infiltration and highway drainags, forms a major part of the wastewater of which North West Water must
dispose. Where practicable, separate sewers are provided for sewage and surface water. North West
Water operates and maintains a network totalling approximately 39,800 kilometres of sewers,

Treatment and disposal

North West Water's wastewater works provide a range of treatments which include primary, enhanced
primary, secondary activated sludge, secondary biological, tertiary activated sludge and tertiary biclogical.
Treated liquid final effluent is discharged into rivers, estuaries or via sea outfalls. In accordance with the
European Union Urban Waste Water Treatment Directive, North West Water's disposat of sludge into the
sea has ceased. North West Water operates 625 wastewater treatment works and 70 sludge treatrment
facilities (including the processing centre at Shell Green, Widnes).

Capital improvement programmes

At the time of water and wastewater privatisation in 1989, the infrastructure inherited by North West Water
was in need of substantial repair and replacements. Further improvements have been required in order to
comply with applicable UK and European Union environmental regulations.

Gross capital investment for the last financial year was £484.6 milion (including £27.4 milion of
discretionary investment), compared with £521.4 million {(including £34.9 millicn of discretionary investment)
in the previous year, The total investment in improving water and wastewater services in the North West
since privatisation has been approximately £4.5 billicn. For example:

Water

investments in the supply, treatment and distribution of clean water have inciuded major
improvements to existing water treatment works, improvements to water resources and leakage
control initiatives, renewal or refurbishment of old cast iron pipes, improvements to continue
compiiance with the quality standards for iron, lead and manganese, improvements to minimise the
risk from cryptosporidium at water treatment works and the maintenance and enhancement of water
supply and distribution facilities.

Wastewater

Investments in the collection, treatment and disposal of wastewater have included construction of
new, and major improvements to existing, wastewater treatment works, improvements in sludge
freatment and disposal including construction of a processing centre, refurbishment of the sewerage
infrastructure and a programme of wastewater network and treatment projects to meet quality
standards for bathing waters along the coast of North West England. All North West Water's
discharges to bathing waters meet or exceed the required discharge consents. Despite this, certain
bathing waters continued to fail the EU mandatory standards. North West Water has, at the request of
the Environment Agency, now completed a programme of additional work to further reduce
stormwater discharges and to upgrade a number of wastewater treatment works.

The implementation of a large part of North West Water's capital investment programme has previously
been managed by an affiliate of Bechtel Group, inc. {a large US construction company). This role is now
contracted to Montgomery Watson Programme Management Limited for the five year programme,
commencing 1 April, 2000. The arrangement is designed to increase efficiencies in executing the capital
expenditure programme as well as to minimise the company’s construction risks.
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Water and wastewater regulation
Economic regulation

The Water industry Act 1991 requires companies engaged in water supply or wastewater services in
England and Wales to be ficensed. Regulation pursuant to these licences is the responsibility of the Director
General of Water Services (DGWS), assisted by the Office of Water Services {Ofwat). The current DGWS's
term of office commenced in August 2000. The DGWS also exercises powers under competition legislation
and these powers have been significantly enhanced by the Competition Act 1998 which came into force on
1 March, 2000.

The DGWS awarded water and wastewater licences in 1988 for a period of 25 years. A licence can be
withdrawn in certain circumstances including, for example, for failure to comply with an enforcement order
made by the DGWS. The UK Govemment must give 10 years’ notice if it does not intend 1o renew a
licence. Under the current regime limited competition of customers with annual consumption of not less
than 250 megalitres is permitted. The DGWS intends to investigate the options for the future of the industry
and advise the UK Government accordingly, indicating that the present industry structure may change and
that less vertical integration would be better for developing competition.

North West Water's licence restricts its conduct in a number of ways. These include prohibitions on
discrimination between customers and on cross-subsidies between North West Water and associated
companies and restrictions on the declaration and payment of dividends. Licence conditions can be
modified by the DGWS either with the agreement of the licensee or following an invastigation by the UK
Competition Commission.

The DGWS regulates water and wastewater charges by capping the average increase in charges which a
company can impose in any year by reference to inflation as measured by the Retail Price Index in the UK
(RPI). “Price limitation” regulation in the UK is performance based. The DGWS reviews price limits every five
years. If North West Water does not accept the DGWS's proposals, it can require the DGWS to refer the
matter to the Competition Commission for determination. In addition, North West Water can request a re-
setting of its price limit during the five year period in certain specified circumstances.

New price limits took effect in April 2000. Average changes in North West Water's charges must, in real
terms, remain within the following levels:

2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05
-9.3% -1.0% 0.0% +4.0% +4.5%

The Water Industry Act 1999 remaved the power to disconnect water supply for non-payment, or to limit
supply with the intention of enforcing payment, for certain premises including private dwellings with effect
from July 1998 and introduced new rights and protections for household water customers from April 2000.
The Department of the Environment, Transport and the Regions intends to draft legislation amending the
regulatory framework for the water and wastewater industry for consideration in late 2000. North West
Water expects further proposals to tighten the regulatory regime for water.

Environmental reguiation

The water and wastewater industry in the UK is subject to substantial domestic and European Union
regulation, placing significant statutory oblfigations on North West Water with regard, infer afia, to the quality
of treated water. European examples include the Drinking Water Directive, the Bathing Water Directive and
the Urban Waste Water Treatment Directive. These European Union directives are implemented by
applicable UK laws and regulations, inciuding the Water Act 1989, the Water industry Act 1991, the Water
Resaurces Act 1991 and the Control of Pollution Act 1974,

Ali water and wastewater companies have a general duty to exercise their powers to conserve and enhance
natural beauty and to promote the efficient use of water. Environmental regulation is the responsibility of the
DGWS together with:

@ the Environment Agency, which is responsible for conserving and redistributing water resources and
securing the proper uses of those resources, including licensing of water abstraction. The
Environment Agency is also responsible for the regulation of discharges to controlled waters,
including discharges fram wastewater treatment works; and
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® the Drinking Water Inspectorate, which enforces water quality.

North West Water expects environmental regulatory standards to tighten.

NORWEB plc (ISSUER)
ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION

Norweb manages an electricity distribution network in North West England of approximately 59,000
kilometres of power lines and underground cables and approximately 32,000 sub-stations. This network
distributes approximately 23,800 GWh of electricity annually from the Nationat Grid and power stations to
approximately 2.2 million customer premises (domestic, commercial and industrial) in North West England.

Norweb holds a public electricity supply (PES) licence granting it the right to distribute electricity to all
current and future electricity suppliers in its licence area in the North West of England. The income derived
from the distribution business depends in part on changes in the demand for electricity by customers in
North West England. Demand for electricity is affected by such factors as growth and movements in
population, social trends, economic and business growth or decline, changes in the mix of energy sources
used by customers, weather conditions, energy efficiency measures and other factors.

Electricity industry structure and regulation

The glectricity industry in Great Britain is regulated under the Electricity Act 1989 by the Director General of
Electricity Supply (DGES) who is assisted by the Office of Gas and Electricity Markets (Ofgem). In addition to
his regulatory powers, the DGES also exercises powers under UK competition legislation and those powers
have been significantly extended by the Competition Act 1998 with effect from 1 March, 2000.

Throughout Engiand and Wales, electricity generation, transmission and distribution systems constitute a
single integrated network. Almost all electricity generated at power stations in England and Wales is
delivered through the National Grid to the local distribution networks. All companies distributing or
supplying electricity must be licensed unless they are covered by an exemption. Norweb's PES licence
authorises it to distribute and supply electricity in North West England. From 2000 the licence can be
terminated on 25 years' notice given by the Secretary of State. The licence can also be revoked in certain
circumstances, including where the licensee fails to comply with an enforcement order made by the DGES.

The licence contains various conditions regulating the conduct of the business. In particular, the disposal of
any part of the distribution system i3 restricted; distribution businesses which the DGES deems tobeina
dominant position must provide services on non-discriminatory terms; cross-subsidies o or from Norweb's
regulated businesses are prohibited; and the directors must provide a certificate of compliance before
declaring dividends or making distributions. In general, PES licences also contain increasingly strict
provisions to maintain and ring-fence the financial and management rescurces of the licensed businesses,
Licence conditions can be modified by the DGES either with the agreement of the ticensee or following an
investigation by the UK Competition Commission.

Norweb's distribution activities are subject fo price control, which caps the maximum increases in prices
charged by reference to RPI. The DGES reviews the form and level of the price controls periodically. If
Norweb does not accept the DGES's proposals, it can require the DGES to refer the matter to the
Competition Commission for determination.

A new price control for Norweb came into effect on 1 April, 2000 and requires a one-off reduction of RPI-27
per cent. in average regulated revenue in 2000/01. Average revenus in the subsequent four years must not
increase faster than RPI-3 per cent. Ofgem intends to introduce additional incentive mechanisms from the
beginning of 2002/03. It has embarked on a project (the Information and Incentives Project) to consider
how outputs of distribution businesses should be measured and whether the existing price control
arrangements provide adequate incentives. Norweb will be fuily involved in this project.

New legislation affecting the eleciricity sector, the Utilities Act 2000, was enacted by the UK Parliament in
July 2000, but has yet to enter fully into force. The changes which the Utlities Act will introduce include:

— anew principal objective for the DGES to protect the interests of consumers, wherever appropriate, by
promoting competition;

— financial penalties for bad practice or poor performance;
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— Separate licensing of electricity supply and distribution, and a bar on the holding of supply and
distribution licences by the same legal person; and

— new collective licence modification procedures enabling the regulator to modify standard licence
conditions without a Competition Commission reference even if some licensees disagree.

SALE OF NORWEB ENERGI

On 3 August, 2000, the Company announced the sale by its subsidiaries, Norwebh plc and Norweb Gas
Limited, of its energy supply business, Norweb Energi, to TXU Eurcpe (“TXU") for £310 million in cash. In
addition, TXU has assumed responsibility for Norweb Energi's power purchase agreements, against which
there was a provision of £176 miilion at 31 March, 2000 in the Company's statutory accounts.

As described befow in relation to Vertex, TXU and Vertex have entered into a 7-year customer service
contract, TXU and North West Water have also entered into a marketing aliance covering the provision of

electricity and gas supplies to North West Water customers arnd water and wastewater services to the
enlargaed TXU customer base.

Pending the entry into force of the relevant provisions of the Utilities Act 2000 providing for separate
licensing of distribution and supply, Norwseb will continue to hold the relevant PES licence and, in
accordance with practice established in respect of previcus sales of supply businesses, TXU will meet
Norweb’s residual supply-related obligations under its PES licence by way of an agency agreement. These
obligations inclhide supply to certain categories of domestic customer in respect of whom price control
continues to apply. Modifications to reflect these arrangements will be made to the electricity licences of
both parties, who have given certain assurances to Ofgem as to their conduct pricr to licence separation.

In addition to holding the PES licence, Norweb will continue, pending their legal transfer, to be the
counterparty to other agreements for which TXU has agreed to meet Norweb's cobligations. TXU has
indemnified Norweb in relation to these agresments.

GAS TRANSPORT

Energi Link Ltd, a United Utilities group company, was awarded a Public Gas Transporter {PGT) licence in
July 2000. Norweb is already established in the business of building gas distribution networks. To date,
these have been built for establishied Public Gas Transporters. The new licence will enable Norweb (through

Energi Link Lid.) to operate gas network assets constructed by Norweb and to receive income from this
activity.

The gas industry in Great Britain is regulated under the Gas Acts 1986 and 1995 by the Director General of
Gas Supply {DGGS), who is assisted by Ofgem. In addition to his reguiatory powers, the DGGS also
exercises powers under UK competition legisiation and those powers have been significantly extended by
the Competition Act 1398 with effect from 1 March, 2000. The operation of pipelines for the conveyance of
gas is regulated by licences. The Utilities Act 2000 will provide for further competition between PGTs by
abolishing the geographical exclusivity hitherto attaching to PGT licences.

OTHER PRINCIPAL OPERATING BUSINESSES
TELECOMMUNICATIONS
NORWEB TELECOM LIMITED

Norweb Telecom delivers voice and data telecommunications solutions for its target small and medium
sized enterprises customer base in North West England and the Midlands, and nationally through its
specialist sector teams and indirect sales channels.

Total investment in the Norweb Telecom network at 31 March, 2000 was £125 million. The investment of
£45 million in the last financial year has increased network reach to around 2,500 kilometres comprising
synchronous digital hierarchy (SDH) fibre based network and local access networks combining to form the
high speed inter-city network. Norweb Telecom is seeking to broaden is product range, both organically
and by acquisition. In February 2000, the group acquired Intercell Limited, a mobile telephone reseller and
Intercell Communications Limited, a reseller of fixed line telecommunications.

Norweb Telecom’s market thrust is on focused and competitive telecommunications services for business
customers. Key customers include small and medium sized enterprises and specialist sectors such as local
government, health and education, and emergency services. It markets its services on a national basis.
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United Utilities has announced its intention to realise value through a partial flotation of Norweb Telecom.

in September 1999, United Utilities announced its intention to close the digital powerline joint venture with
Norted. Despite the proven ability of the technology, the projected volumes and profitability within the
competitive broadband access market were considered by the company insufficient to justify the
investment required. Accordingly, the NOR.WEB.DPL business, as well as Norweb Telecom's digital
powerline project in North West England, were discontinued. However the group is exploring ways o
maintain an interest in the potential of this technology.

Telecommunications regulation

Norweb Telecom's activities are principally regulated by the Telecommunications Act 1984 and by the
conditions of Norweb Telecom’s public telecommunications operator (PTO) licence. The Secretary of State
for Trade and Industry and the Director General of Telecommunications are the principal regutators of the
telecommunications industry in the UK,

PTO licences, including Norweb Telecom’s, contain a wide range of conditions designed, in particular, to
ensure that all PTO licence holders provide a basic range of telecommunication services and meet the
requests for interconnection with networks operated by other licensees. PTO licences also contain
prohibitions against showing undue preference or discrimination in the provision of telecommunication
services. Norweb Telecom'’s PTO licence does not include price controls,

BUSINESS PROCESS OUTSOURCING
VERTEX DATA SCIENCE LIMITED

Vertex supplies a range of business process outsourcing services to companies in the United Utilities group
and increasingly to external organisations. ts primary focus is customer relationship management (CRM;. it
seeks to maximise value for its customers by integrating transactional-based and value-enhancing CRM
activities.

Cutside the United Utilittes group, Vertex has enjoyed continued success. Highlights include:

® August 2000: a 7-year contract worth £650 milion with TXU (purchaser of the Norweb ENERGI supply
business) to provide customer services (including biling, call centre and income management) to the
enlarged TXU energy supply business which incorporates Eastern Energy and Norweb ENERGH;

® March 2000: a 10-year contract worth up to £140 million to provide a range of operator services to
Cable & Wireless; and

® Aprif 1999; an extended five-year contract worth £30 million with its existing customer, Littlewoods, to
manage BetDirect, the telephone-based betting service for a wide range of sporting events.

INTERNATIONAL AND CONTRACT ASSET MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS
UNITED UTILITIES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

United Utilities International develops and cperates contracts around the world based on the group’s core
water and electricity asset management skills. It has a focused approach to pursuing opportunities that
meet its strict financial and geographic area criteria, with the objective of securing long term investment and
operational sources of income whilst limiting financial exposure.

Recent highlights include:

® November 1899: strategic partnership agreement with the Municipality of Bielsko-Biala in Poland, to
provide the expertise to improve the quality of their water and wastewater services; and

@ December 1999: United Utilities International and Interational Water (UK} Limited secured a contract
to operate water and wastewater services for Sofia, Bulgaria, with a population of 1.2 million.

In addition, US Water, a company indirectly owned equally by United Utilities and Bechtel, is the principal
entity through which the owners pursue water and wastewater projects in most of North America. In the last
financial year US Water won several new contracts in North America.
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WESTERN POWER DISTRIBUTION’S OFFER FOR HYDER pic

By a share sale agreement dated 26 May, 2000 (the “Sale Agreement”), Western Power Distribution
Limited (*“WPD"} and United Utilities agreed that, following WPD's offer for Hyder plc becoming or being
declared unconditional in all respects, United Utilities will acquire from WPD a company (“UUco™)
contracted to provide certain operational and maintenance and customer services to Dwr Cymiry, until Dwr
Cymru imptements a programme of competitive outsourcing in respect of these activities 1o be undertaken
in a manner and according to a timetable which is acceptable to the DEWS. UUco will also provide certain
services to South Wales Electricity, for a transitional period of up to one year, and will in addition carry on
the business previously conducted by Hyder Services, of providing managed services to a range of third
party custorners. United Utilities has agreed to pay £40 milion for UUco. In connection with these
arrangements, WPD has also granted United Utilities an option to acquire, for £75 million, the Hyder
Industrial business, which includes, amongst other things, the provision of water and waste treatment
infrastructure services to corporates and the generation of power from renewable energy sources. The

option is exercisable within three months of United Utilities being provided with certain information with
regard to such business.

Cn 18 August, 2000, Severn Trent plc issued legal proceedings against Dwr Cymru alleging that the
agreement to be entered into between Uco and Dwr Gymru prior to the completion of the Sale Agreement
under which UlUco will provide certain operational and maintenance and custorner services to Dwr Cymr,
would breach the Utilities Contracts Regulations 1896 (the “Regulations”). On 23 August, 2000, WPD and
United Utflities successfully applied to the court to be joined in such action for the purposes of making
representations to the court on the issues in contention. The matter received an initial hearing on 22
September, 2000 and an interlocutory judgement, pending full hearing on the merits, is expected shortly.

51




UNITED UTILITIES PLC

Litigation

Save as disclosed in this Offering Circular on page 51, the Company is not aware of any material litigation to
which it or any of its subsidiaries {together, the “Group”) is a party, or of which any of their property is the
subject, or any such proceedings known to be contempiated by any third party or governmental authority.
The Group is engaged in litigation in the ordinary course of its operations, such as contract disputes,
disputes over easements/wayleaves and other similar property matters, bill collections, personal injury
claims and workers' compensation claims. The Group does not believe that such litigation, either
indivicdually or in the aggregate, is rnaterial. The Company maintains insurance and, to the extent that the
amounts in dispute may not be covered by such insurance, maintaing provisions in those situations where
management deems it appropriate in accordance with UK GAAP.

Board of Directors
The directors of the Company and their functions within the Group are as follows:

Name Function

John Roberts Chief Executive

Simon Batey Group Finance Director

Gordon Waters Managing Director, Contract Asset Management
Sir Peter Middleton Non-Executive Director; Acting Chairman
Norman Broadhurst Non-Executive Director

John Seed Non-Executive Director

Sir Richard Evans Non-Executive Director

Jane Newell Non-Executive Director

None of the directors of United Utilities PLC performs activities outside the Group which are significant with
respect to the Group.

The business address of each of the directors is the Company’s registered office which is Birchwood Point
Business Park, Birchwood Boulevard, Birchwood, Warrington WA3 7WB.

With effect from 1 November, 2000, Les Dawson has been appointed a director of the Company. His
function will be Managing Director, Licensed Asset Management.
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Capitalisation and Indebtedness of United Utilities PLC

The following table, which has been extracied from the audited financial siatements for the year ended
- 31 March, 2000, sets out the consolidated capitalisation and indebiedness of the Group at 31 March,

2000.
£m
Short Term Debt:
Short term debt (iIncluding Overdrafts) .........oeevrmoier e 665.8
Current portion of long term debt.......... beveeererirnaare et eri ferrtteratere et et it erarnares . 52,7
Total short term debt® ... TS RURIURN 718.5
Long Term Debt:
Long termn debt, net of current portion.....c..eeveieveiiiiennee, e bt aretn e erieearaaran e aniene s 2,201.9
Total long term debt® ... BT OO OOV P RO RR U TURUTUURRTRURURRURRIO 2,201.9
—————
Shareholders’ Funds:®
Called up share capital......... vererreranen e RN 550.5
Share premium acCount ....ccvveeereeereens retrrera e e eraraaae teteeete et R, . 645.1
Profit and lass account .., v raeeeen Cerereretetavarantarererrterratraatrareriae anen . 1,321.8
© Total shareholders’ funds® ............... et —e e et e et e eate ot vt et earterareenene 2,517.4
i ’ ——————
. Total capitalisation@ @ 1O e 4,719.3
—————

Notes:

{8) As at 20 August, 2000, the total short term debt of the Group was approximately £647 rilion and the total long term debt was
approximately £2,209 milion.

(b) As at 31 March, 2000 the authorised share capital of the Cornpany was £720 million nominal comprising 720 million ordinary
shares of £1 nominal each. The allotted, called up and fully paid share capital of the Company was £550,511,886 cornprising
550,511,886 ordinary shares of £1 nominal each.

(c} As at 20 August, 2000, shareholders' funds totalled approximately £2,933 million.
{d) As at 31 March, 2000, contingent liabilities totalled £34 million, ,
{e) Asat 31 March, 2000, none of the indebtedness of the Group was guaranteed and there was no secured indebtedness.

i The Group's chiigations under certain agreernents have been assurned by TXU as part of the disposat of Norweb Energi pending
their legal transter as detailed on page 49. TXU has given an indemnity in relation to these obligations.

(g} Save as disclosed above, there has been no material change in the consolidated capitalisation, indebtedness or contingent
liabilities of the Group since 31 March, 2000.
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NORWEB plc

NORWERB plc was registered in England and Wales on 1 April, 1989 with registered number 2366949 and
acquired by North West Water Group PLC in November 1995. A more detailed description of the business
is set out on pages 48 to 49 of the Offering Circular,

Board of Directors
The directors of NORWEB plc and their functions within the company are as follows:

Name Function
Simon Batey Director
Martin Bradbury Director
Clive Elphick Director
Howard Kirkham Director
John Roberts Director

None of the directors of NORWEB plc performs activities outside the Group which are significant with
respect to the Group.

The business address of each of the directors is the company’s registered office which is PO Box 14,
410 Birchwood Boulevard, Birchwood, Warrington WAS 7GA.
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Capitalisation and Indebtedness of NORWEB plc

The following table, which has been extracted from the audited financial statements for the year ended

- 31 March, 2000, sets out the consolidated capitalisation and indebtedness of NORWEB pic at 31 March,
2000.

£m
Short Term Debt:

Short {erm debt (including overdrafis) ...... e e RUTRTTRY rereieeeaeaas eeeereianan 292.1
Current portion of long term debt

..............................................................................

Total short term debt® ................ s ettt ettt e er et e et e et eean e 292.1
Long Term Debt:
Leng term debt, net of current portion ..o vcvvinncine e rerrreeenaans 195.0
Total long term debt® .......... e et ettt st e et 195.0
—
Shareholders’ Funds®™ .
Revaluation FESEIVE......ccicii et vr e s e eare reeniaene e rereee e e 212.4
Share premium account......... TR e ettt a et it e raannn s 4.4
Called Up share CapItal........co.eiir i et e s e s e e e e anias 784
Profit and loss account .............. ferreeere e, v eererrarererateraes o bertresreee e 249.4
Other reserves........... R perees e ererenaen e ieeertaeeterate s —————aararaare 8.6
| —
‘ Total shareholders’ funds!® ... v i e et rneris eevrer et 553.2
e ——
Total capitalisation® D0 e 748.2
— —— —1
Notes:

(a) Asat 20 August, 2000, the total short term debt of NORWEB plc and its subsidiaries was approximately £196 mitlion and the total
long term debt was approximately £195 million.

(&) As at 31 March, 2000, the authorised share capital of NORWEB plc was £125 milion comprising 250 million ordinary shares of
50p nominal each and one speclal rights redeemable preference share of £1. The allotted, called up and fully paid share capital of
NORWEB plc was £78,410,671 comprising 156,621,341 ordinary shares of 50p nominal each.

{c) As at 20 August, 2000, shareholders’ funds totalfed approximately £718 million.

(@) Asat31 March, 2000, there were no material contingent liabilities, none of the indebtedness of NORWEB plc was guaranteed and
there was no secured indebtedness.

{e) NORWER pic's obligations under certain agreements have been assumed by TXU pending their legal transfer as detailed on page
49, TXU has given an indemnity in relation to these obligations.

{i Save as disciosed above, there has beent no material change in the capitalisation, indebtedness or contingent liabflities of
NORWEB plc since 31 March, 2000.
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NORTH WEST WATER LIMITED

The Guarantor was incorporated for an uniimited duration in England and Wales on 1 April, 1989 with

registered number 2366678 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of United Utilities PLC. The Guarantor is a
company limited by shares and operates under the Companies Act 1985. A detailed description of the
business of the Guarantor is set out cn pages 45 to 48 of the Offering Circular.

Board of Directors

The directors of the Guarantor and their functions within the Guarantor are as follows:

Name

Bob Armstrong
Martin Bradbury
Richard Bradbury
Patrick McCloskey
Stan Chaplin
Clive Elphick
Phillida Entwistle
Deborah Morton
John Roberts
Colin South

John Barnes

Simon Batey

Function

Managing Director, Customer Sales and Deputy Managing Director
Operations Director
Commercial Director
Corporate Services Director
Finance Director _

Planning Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Director

Wastewater Services Director
Water Services Director

Director

None of the directors of the Guarantor performs activities outside the Group which are significant with
respect to the Group. :

The business address of each of the directors is the Guarantor's registered office which is PO Box 14, 410
Birchwood Boulevard, Birchwood, Warrington WA3 7GA.

With effect from 30 September, 2000, Harry Croft retired as a director of the Guarantor. His function was
Managing Director. A new Managing Director of the Guarantor has not been appointed.
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Capitalisation and Indebtedness of North West Water Limited

The following table, which has been extracted from the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
- March, 2000, sets out the consolidated capitalisation and indebtedness of the Guarantor at 31 March,

2000.
£m
Short Term Debt:

Short term debt (including overdrafts) .......coococreviviiininciniireenee feereerereaas feeeerrere e 354.9

Current portion of 1ong termn debit ... et e sae e reeares e s aeeseerres 30.8
Total short term debt® ... TR ettt s 385.7

P
Long Term Debt:

Long term debt, net of current portion.....eeeee. e ieeranns T et errarane e 1,673.2
Total 1oNG 1M BB ..ottt ettt rab e st e e enerain 1,673.2
Shareholders’ Funds:® )

Equity share capital.......... et et et et eeren T 4319

Share PremilM BCCOUNT ..veu. i veieii i st s iern e ein i es st seaettrrarensaransirattrertassarrnsensnererennses B847.8

Profit and loss account ............. eeerianaan v eerrrt v rrrairas frverreire e rerveeerbanans e 1,028.4

Non equity Share CapIAL.........cviiii i e et e ra e 2234
Total shareholders’ funds® ..........coovene. et et e e , 2,331.5

——
Total capitalisation®®® .. . e e e et e 4,004.7
e ——

Notes:

(@) Asat 20 August, 2000, the total short term debt was approximately £414 million and the total long term debt was approximately
£1,812 million.

{b) As at 31 March, 2000, the authorised share capital of the Guarantor was £873,437,000 nominal comprising 650,000,000 ordinary
shares of £1 nominal each and 223,437,000 preference shares of £1 nominal each. The allotted, called up and fully paid share
capital of the Guaranior was £655,367,000 comprising 431,930,000 ordinary shares of £1 nominat each and 223,437,000
preference shares of £1 nominal each.

{c) As at 20 August, 2000, sharehclders funds totalled approximately £2,440 milion.

{d As at 31 March, 2000, on a consociidated basis, approximately £515 miflion of the Guarantor’s debt was guaranteed by United
Utilities PL.C. In addition £333 million of short term debt issued by North West Water Finance PLC was jointly guarantesd by North
West Water Limited and United Utilities PLC.

(&) As at 31 March, 2000, there were no material contingent liabilities and there was no secured indebledness.

{} Save as disclosed above, there has been no material change in the capitalisation, indebtedness or contingent liabilittes of the
Guarantor since 31 March, 2000.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT ON NORTH WEST WATER LIMITED

The financial information set out on pages 59 to 76 has been extracted, without material adjustments, from
- the audited accounts of North West Water Limited in respect of the year ended 31 March, 2000. The report
set out below is the full text of the Guarantor's auditors’ report accompanying the Guarantor's financial
statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2000. The page references below are to those of such accounts.

“Auditors’ Report to the Members of North West Water Limited

We have audited the financial statements on pages 8§ to 25.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and, as described above, the financial
statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards. Our
responsibilities, as independent auditors, are established in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing
Practices Board and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
directors’ report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the Group is not
disciosed.

We read the other information accompanying the financial statements and consider whether it is consistent
with those statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by
the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adeguately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
congidered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
etror. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adeguacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements.

Cpinion
In our opinion the financial staterments give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the company and

the Group as at 31 March, 2000 and of the profit of the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

KPMG Audit Pic
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
Manchester
7 July, 2000"
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH, 2000

2000 190Q
Note £m £m
Turnaver 1{b) 1,033.9 987.0
Net operating costs (including exceptional Year 2000 costs of
£5.6mM, 1999 £10.0M. - ierieereirricrrer i er e e e v v e e rree e 3 (562.7) (516.9)
I (o)1l (=)o | (= PO PR {18.5) {18.3)
Operating profit ..............cooooiiiiiiii e 452.7 431.8
Net interest payable ..o e 7 {124.6) (117.1)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation...................... 328.1 314.7
Tax on profit on ordinary activities........ccociie e 8 (3.9 {(89.6)
Profit for the financial year .......................c.oeii e, 324.2 225.1
DIVIAENOS 11vvesvereiiis e r v e rernr s e s neeereaes e 9 (195.5) {317.2)
Transfer to/ffrom) reserves ...............ccooeveviec e, 19 128.7 Q2.1

All of the results derive from continuing operations.

The Group has no recognised gaing or losses other than the profit for the year.

RECONCILIATIONS OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH, 2000

Group Company

2000 1999 2000 1999

om £m £m £m

Profit for the financial year.........c..cooovvievieveiinnnes 324.2 2251 324.2 225.1
DIVIdENdS ..o e s e {195.5) (317.2) (185.5) (317.2)
Transfer 10/(from) reServes e 128.7 {@2.1) 128.7 {92.1)
issue of preference ShareS........occeevveiiveiinvenneee . 18.3 148.3 18.3 148.3
Net movernent in shareholders’ funds for the year 147.0 56.2 147.0 56.2
Opening shareholders’ funds........oceevvveiiiveiies 2,184.5 2,128.3 2,184.5 2,128.3
Closing shareholders’ funds ......................... 2,331.5 2,184.5 2,331.5 2,184.5
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BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 MARCH, 2000

- Group Company
2000 1999 2000 1999
Note £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets ..o 10 4,632.5 4,347.9 4,632.5 4,347.9
[MVeStMEntS.. ..o 11 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4

4,632.8 4,348.2 4,632.9 4,348.3
Current assets

Cashatbank .........cciiiiiiivnnnnnnnen, 17.6 — 17.6 —
StOCKS .t 25 2.3 2.5 2.3
Debtors ....occciiiiiiie e 12 307.8 342.3 305.4 341.6
327.9 344.6 325.5 343.9
Creditors .
Amounts falling due within one year 13 (883.0) {902.3) (880.7) (901.7)
Net current liabilities...........occevnneen. (655.1) {557.7) (655.2) {557.8)
Total assets less current liabilities ... 4,077.7 3,790.5 4,077.7 3,790.5
Creditors
Amounts falling due after more than
ONB YA ..ooievviii e iirien s ereeieanns 14 {1,740.8) (1,602.9) {1,740.8) {1,602.9)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 16 (5.4) (3.1) (5.4 (3.1
NetassetS..............cccceeeeieeeeninnen, 2,331.5 2,184.5 2,331.5 2,184.5
Capital and reserves
Equity share capital...........oeevvvvenen. 18 431.9 431.9 431.9 4319
Share premium account ................ 18 647.8 647.8 647.8 647.8
Profit and loss account.................. 19 1,028.4 899.7 1,028.4 829.7
Equity shareholders’ funds ........ 2,108.1 1,979.4 2,108.1 1,8979.4
Non-equity share capital ............ 18 223.4 205.1 223.4 205.1
Shareholders’ funds.................... 2,3315 2,184.5 2,331.5 2,184.5

Approved by the Board of directors on 7 July 2000 and signed on its behalf by

Stan Chaplin
Finance Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH, 2000

2000 2000 1999 1929
£Em £m £m EmM
Net cash inflow from operating activities ..... 627.2 533.7
Returns on investments and servicing of
finance
Interest recaived ..o 8.1 7.3
Interest pait....cocceee v {130.8) {112.9)
Interest element of finance lease repayments...... 5.1 {15.8)
Net cash outfiow from returns on investment
and servicing of finance ... (129.8) (121.4)
Taxation ........ooiviiiii e {(77.9) {65.09
Capital expenditure
Purchase of tangible fixed assets.........cccooeveveen. {500.2) (477.9)
Grants and cantributions received ........ccccvveeee. ’ 7.2 7.1
Disposal of tangible fixed asseis...........ccoveiens 22 A7
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure............. {490.8) {466.1)
Dividends paid ..............ccoceeiviiiiiin i, {193.1) {308.3)
Cash outflow before use of liquid resources (264.4) (427.1)
Financing
Issue of preference share capital .............ccee e, 18.3 148.3
Increass of debt ... 2715 2718
Net cash inflow from financing ......cccocevieeniinnn, 285.8 419.8
increase/(decrease) in cash.................cccoeel 25.4 (7.3)
NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH, 2000
2000 1999
£m Em
Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating
activities
Operating PrOfit ...cviiv e et 452.7 431.8
(D= o1 =1L S O RO PR PSR URP TR 192.8 168.4
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assels ....ccooee v, {0.8) {2.6)
IOCK INMCIBASE. 1. 1o evvevrecvrerrenintvare e raereerstreeeteny bt bnen e et eaeeeaeeepreteaasnb e e s 0.2 {0.9)
Debtors decraase/(NCrEaSE) ...c..vve it ieeieeiii et eeer e s arr e e e e e e e reaans 38.9 {90.9)
Creditors (Jecre@se)/iNCIBASE . u.. uvv i cieeeererrrer e rre s rscernriareeareataacerrarennas (54.0) 27.9
Net cash inflow frorm operating aChvities......ccvevii i s B27.2 533.7
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2000 1989

£m £m
- Reconciliation on net cash flow to movement in net debt
Increase/{decrease) in cash iN the Year......ccccccv e 254 (7.3)
Cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing ... v vvvvveenienn {271.5) (271.5)
Movement in net debtintheyear ..., (246.1) {278.8)
Netdebt at 1 April 1999 ... e e ves e (1,775.9) (1,497.1)
Net debt at 31 March 2000....................ciie i, (2,022.0) (1,775.9)
- — ———————
2000 2000 1999 1999
£m £m £m £m
Analysis of cash flows for headings netted
in the cash flow statement
Financing
Issue of preference share capital .....ccocooeeeeee - 18.3 148.3
Debt due within a year:
— repaid short term group l0ans .......cceeecievivnnnen.. {17.6) {124.6)
- new/(repayment of) short term bank loans ....... 228.5 {(221.9)
Debt due beyond a vear:
—NEW IOEMS . ot 162.3 790.0
- repayment of long-term extemnal loans............. (100.0) (24.6)
Capital element of finance leass repayments....... (1.7 (3.9)
(Repaid)/new inter-group finance leases ............. — (143.5)
271.5 271.5
Net cash inflow from financing ..................... 289.8 419.8
At
At 1 April 31 March
1099 Cashflow 2000
&m £m £m
Analysis of changes in net debt
LONG B IOANS 1.euiiie i e ee e (1,441.7) {62.3) {1,504.0)
FINANCE IBSES. .. vveutieeriieriis e rritiie s ee e e s e are i ee e e eerte e e eernnaa s {201.7) 1.7 (200.0)
Short 1eIM I0ANS ..ci v er e e e areraraeres (118.1) (228.5) {346.6)
Parent undertaking short term loan .......ccceieicciinn e (38.3) 17.6 (26.7)
OV A . v et et {16.1) 7.8 (8.3)
BOITOWINGS ........ccocoriririiieiiaiiirrereeessrrrnarses s vas e eeeeearanerrnenes (1,815.9) (263.7) {(2,079.6)
Parent undertaking loan.........cccooiiiiinn i 40.0 — 40.0
Cash in hand ....ccooovviiii e e — 17.6 17.6
Netdebt..........oi e {1,775.9) {246.1) (2,022.0)

——————J}aay——— - e 1

62




1.
@)

(&)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of North Wast Water Limited and its subsidiary {the Group} have
been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting

standards and, except for the treatment of certain grants and contributions (note () below), with the
Companies Act 1285,

Tumover

Turmover represents the income receivable in the ordinary course of business for services provided
and excludes VAT.

Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is written off against profit in the year in which it is incurred.

Tangibie fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets comprise infrastructuré assets (mains, sewers, impounding and purmped raw
water storage reservoirs, dams, sludge pipelines and sea cutfalls) and other assets (including
properties, overground plant and equipment).

{y Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systerns. Expenditure on infrasiructure assets
relating to increases in capacity or enhancement of the network and on maintaining the operating
capabifity of the network in accordance with defined standards of service is treated as an addition
and included at cost after deducting grants and centributions.

The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets is the estimated level of annual expenditure
required to maintain the operating capability of the network which is based on the company’s
independently certified asset management pian.

it has been necessary to change the method of accounting for infrastructure maintenance
expenditure following the introduction of FRS 15 as it is no longer possible to account for the
difference betwaen planned and actual expenditure on infrastructure renewals as a provision or
prepayment. As a consequence the balance sheet includes values since the year to 31 March
1989, when renewals accounting was first adopted in the accounts, and any previous provisions
or prepayments have been subsumed into fixed assets. This adherence to FRS 15 has no affect
on the profit and loss account other than to reclassify the renewals charge as depreciation.

() Other assets (including properties, overground plant and eguipment)
Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation. Additions are included at cost.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Assets in the course of construction with an estimated
economic life greater than 20 years are not depreciated urttil the year following cormmissioning.

Other assets are depreciated evenly over their estimated economic lives which are principally as

follows:

0o g o = B ROEPPTPSUPOTPR 30-60 years
Operational assets .......... e rerh b et retere e e e he et et ann s areahe b aeranten e s et s 5-80Q years
Fixtures, fitlings, 100ls aNd BQUIDIMENT . ...o. e 3-40 years
PrE-T D74 BSSEES oot tiiiiaii e eteeeieatans etn e mtas et ettt et s taan s eeta e et bn s ntaaeanns 26-27 years
Capitalised CompUier SOMWEIS COBIS it et ere e 3-10 years

Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions recaivable relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost
of tangible fixed assets. This is not in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 which requires
tangible fixed assets {o be shown at cost and hence grants and contributions as deferred income. This
departure from the requirements of the Cormnpanies Act 1985 is, in the opinion of the Directors,




nacessary for the financial staterments to show a true and fair view as while a provision is made for
depreciation of infrastructure assets, these assets do not have determinable finite lives and therefore
ne basis exists on which to recognise grants and contributions as deferred income. The effect of this
treatrment on the value of tangible fixed assets is disclosed in note 10.

Grants receivable in respect of other tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income, which is
credited to the profit and loss account over the estimated economic lives of the related assets.

Leased assets

Assets financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership 10 the lessee (finance leases) are capitalised in the balance sheet and the corresponding
capital cost is shown as an obligation to the lessor. Leasing repayments comprise both a capital and a
finance element. The finance element is written off to the profit and loss account so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the outstanding obligation. Such assets are
depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the period of the lease.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

(@) Fixed asset investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less amounts written off for permanent diminution,

{h) Stocks
Stocks are stated at cost less any provision necessary to recognise damage and obsclescence.

{i Pensions

Most of the company’s employees belong to pension schemes which provide for defined benefits
based on final pensionable pay. Pension costs are charged against profits over the estimated
remaining service fives of employees. Details of pension arrangements and funding are set out in note
20.

{) Deferred taxation

Provision is made for deferred taxation where an asset or a liabilty is considered likely to arise in the
foreseeable future.

(k) Financial instruments

The notional interest on interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements to manage interest rate
exposures on the company’s net borrowings is included with the interest flows of the underlying net
borrowings. These financial instruments in the above circurnstances are not revalued to their open
market value, but, on realisation, gains and losses are spread over the pericd of the hedged position.

2. Segmental information
The company operates in the United Kingdom in one class of business.
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3. Net operating costs

2000 1999
£m £m

Employee costs:
Wages and SalArES. .....coooc i e e r e 93.3 91.4
SoCial SeCUNY COBIS it e 8.1 8.2
Pension contributions (NOTE 20) ..vee i et ee s 9.5 10.3
110.9 109.9
0T o e el gty T U P PP 25.2) {27.2)
INTraStruCTUrE FENEWAIS ...ccvvveiiice s i e et e e cr e rre e e s (6.2} {6.7)

79.5 76.0

Depreciation:

OWNned fiXBO ASSETS. .. i e e e 111.4 20.7

Fixed assets held under fiNANCE TEASES ..ovvvver v i i e e reens 5.0 4.8

Non-infrastructure depreciation...........covveevicieeicenia, e 116.4 85.5

Infrastructure epretialion. . .o e 768.2 72.8
192.6 168.4

Other operating costs include:

Other operating costs: including exceptional Year 2000 costs of £5.6m

(1999 — E10.0M) coi i et eean s 268.0 2515

Raw materials and consumables ... 24.6 21.7

AUIOTS" TEMUNETALION ...eevvvris e eiriersereeri e er bt ersreaserestrasirinreeeresarsens 0.1 0.1

Research and developMENt ........coivieieiiii i e e s e 1.5 2.3

Operating leases:

— hire of plant @nd MaChINEIY .....ccovv i e era 1.5 1.7

— land and builldings .......cooeeveennees e eearteteretetereatintsttet ntianstaanttattanatanns 0.5 2.1

Other INCOME (NOTE 4) oeiirir e e eenes 5.6) {6.9)
290.6 2725

Total net operating COsSts ... 562.7 516.9

Managed service fees and asset charges from group undertakings are contained within other operating
costs.

Fees payable to the auditor and its associates for non-audit services in 2000 were £248,000 (19899 —
£281,000).

4. Other income

2000 1999

£m £m

Profit on disposal of fixed assets ..o eaea 0.8 2.8
Net rents reCaiVADIE . ..o v e e e e 2.4 2.2
L = N PSR 2.4 2.1
5.8 6.9

65




5. Directors

The aggregate emoluments of the directors in 2000 amounted to £1,464,676 (1999 — £1,106,627).
Emcluments comprise salaries, fees, taxable benefits and the value of short term incentive awards. The
emoluments of the highest paid director (H R Croft) in 2000 amounted to £277,033 {1999 - £212,023).

The United Ultilities Pension Scheme is a defined benefit pension scheme, which is cpen to all eligible
employees. It provides pensions and other benefits to members within Inland Revenue limits. Al the current
executive directors are members and contribute to the scheme. It provides a pension for them on normal
retirement at age 60 equal to between 1/30th and 1/45th of pensionable earnings for each completed year
of service. The maximum pension is two thirds of pensionable earnings. Early retirement is possible from
age 50 if the company agrees.

The Finance Act 1989 restricts the pension benefits that can be paid by the Scheme to directors who joined
the company after 1 June 1989 because the eamings cap limits pensionable earmnings for calculating
benefits. The company has put in place for some of the executive directors affected separate
arrangements, the effect of which is to provide for them the same pension benefits as for those
executives who are not limited by the cap. These arrangements are unfunded. In accordance with these
separate unfunded arrangements, the company has made payments of £218,205 in total in the year ended
31 March 2000 (1999 — nil).

The accrued pension at 31 March 2000 for H R Croft was £120,189 per annum {1999 -~ £101,736 per
annum).

At 31 March, the directors and their families had the following interests, all of which were beneficial
interests, in the ordinary shares and options to subscribe far ordinary shares in United Utilities PLC (details
of the interests of directors of United Utilities PLC are deait with in that company’s accounts).

2000 1889 or on appointment

Share options Share options
Executive  Employes Executive  Employee
Ordinary option  sharesave Qrdinary option  sharesave
shares scheme scheme shares scheme scheme
R D Armstrong.......... 12,373 12,293 3,173 12,717 12,293 3,675
JABames.............. 4,950 20,549 3,600 4,950 12,249 3,600
M F Bradbury........... 10,355 32,512 3,596 10,922 23,137 4,005
R G Bradbury........... — 36,184 — — 28,083 —
8 W Chaplin............. 3,715 5,828 2177 2,864 5,828 3,028
HRCroft.........ooeve. 8,546 28,010 — 11,813 28,010 —
C H Elphick.............. 9,579 23,636 3,623 9,798 23,636 3,623
P G S Entwistle........ a0 —_ —_ Q0 — —
P E McCloskey......... — 42,227 3,679 — 32,977 3,586
C South..ccvvviinnnen, 33,015 11,912 1,449 32,565 3,612 4,005

Details of the employee sharesave scheme and the executive share option scheme operaied by United
Utiiities PLC are given in that company’s accounts.

Details of directors’ options granted for ordinary shares during the year are as follows:

Options
granted Exercise
during price per First date Last date
the year share Scheme exercisable exercisable
R D Armstrong ...... 2,054 471.5 Sharesave 1 Mar 2003 1 Sep 2003
J A Barnss............ 8,300 768.0 Executive option 29 Jun 2002 29 Jun 2009
M F Bradbury ........ 9,375 768.0 Executive option 29 Jun 2002 29 Jun 2009
2,147 471.5 Shiaresave 1 Mar 2005 1 Sep 2005
R G Bradbury........ 8,101 768.0 Executive option 29 Jun 2002 29 Jun 2008
P E McCloskey...... 9,250 768.0 Executive option 29 Jun 2002 29 Jun 2009
3,579 471.5 Sharesave 1 Mar 2005 1 Sep 2005
C South......ccovuevees 8,300 768.0 Executive option 29 Jun 2002 29 Jun 2009
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Details of directors’ options exercised for ordinary shares during the year are as follows:

Options
- exercised Exercise Mid-rnarket
during price per Exercise price when First date Last date
the year share Scherne date exercised exercisavle exercisabie
R D Armstrong 2,556 404.8 Sharesave 2 Mar 2000 649.5 2 Mar 2000 1 Sep 2000
M F Bradbury. 2,556 404.8 Sharesave 2 Mar 2000 B49.5 2 Mar 2000 1 Sep 2000
S W Chaplin... 851 404.8 Sharesave 2 Mar 2000 6485 2Mar 2000 1 Sep 2000
C South......... 2,556 404.8 Sharesave 2 Mar 2000 649.5 2 Mar 2000 1 Sep 2000

The mid-market share price on 31 March 2000 was 655.0p.
The range during the year was 482.5p {low) to 876.0p (high).

6. Employees

2000 1999
1 Average number of persons employed ..., e ST, 4116 4,135
: e s
} 7. Netinterest payable
| 2000 1909
£m £m
Interest payable:
On bank loans, overdrafts and other 10ans .o 66.9 74.5
O fINANCE J0ESES 1 ivveeii et et s v e i e vttrert e s ertresebaeeranraens 5.0 7.0
GroupR UNGEMAKINGS ... vveiereirieeierirrtirereaeesses s iesieass e s aataseatnnaesians 59.3 48.1
Tota) IEErest DAYADIE (o 131.2 12086
Interest receivable:
Group UNDRMAKINGS «vvvviiisiir e ers e sve i sernersss e s s erserssrer s er e raenees {5.0) {11.2)
o EIMAl o e (1.8) {1.3)
Net INterest PAYAIIIE ... it aea e aatecaaana e s 1 aem raaa s aassrenseas 124.6 1171
8. Taxation of profit on ordinary activities
2000 1999
£m £m
UK Corporation Tax at 30% (1998 ~—— 331%) ..ccvivvieei e a9 B9.6
The full potential deferred tax liability is:
Accelerated tax allowances on buildings, plant and equipment;
INfrastrUCtUrE BSSEES .. uvuueer i vieier et v ee et e r e s e aenan 471.4 431.4
01T T = £ VPP 254.5 201.1
Other timing differanCes. i 25.0) {20.3)
700.9 612.2

No deferred tax liability is provided in the company’s accounts,

in order to utiise surplus Advance Corporation Tax prior to its abolition in April 1999, capital
allowances were not claimed during 1997/88 and 1998/89. In the current year, capital allowances
were claimed which consequently reduced taxable profits resulting in a lower tax charge.
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9. Dividends

; 2000 1999
i £m em
Interim dividend of 14.28 pence per share (1998 — 14.00 pencel......... 61.7 €0.5
Final dividend of 28.88 pence per share recommended (1899 — 28.31
DIBTICE) 1ittenneiensierseierertrestranttes it tr s aratetess e trnn s aetiessartrn s sarrerrstes 124.7 122.3
Special dividend {1999 — 30.05 PENCE) v vvvevirveier e cerrcierine e enenes — 129.8
Preference share dividend 6.98 pence per share (1999 — 3.49 pence) g.1 4.5
Adjustrment to prior year final dividend.............ccoi e, — 0.1
195.5 317.2
] ]
North West Water Limited has increased its ordinary dividend payment to United Utilities PLC by 2.0
per cent to £186.4 million gross for the year. The growth in dividend is consistent with the
management of the economic risk of the business. North West Water Limited has alse paid a
preference dividend of £3.1 million for the year to United Utilities PLC. These dividends will not impair
the ability of North West Water Limited to finance its Appointed Business.
10. Tangible fixed assets
Fixtures,
Infra- Opera- fittings, Agsets in
Land and structure tiohal tools and Pre-1974 course of
buildings assets  structures  equipment assets construction Total
£m em £m m £m £ £m
Group and company
Cost:
At 1 April 1998 ............ 1991 27246 1,810.5 502.4 177.4 418.9 5,832.9
AGAILIONS. ...\ cveverevcvernes 1.3 118.2 37.0 1.7 — 315.8 484.0
Grants and
contributions ............... —_ (5.5) — -— — — (5.5)
Inter-group transfer ...... (0.1} —- — — — 0.3 0.2
Transfers........oecvveeinnne 7.0 79.5 782 33.9 — (198.6) —
DiSPOSAIS ..o cveeeeeeeene. (1.8) —_— 0.1 {(19.7) — — (21.4)
At 31 March 2000....... 205.7 2,916.8 1,925.8 528.3 177.4 536.4 6,290.2
Depreciation:
At 1 April 1999 ............ 36.6 766.4 322.4 2208 1388 — 1,485.0
Charge for the vear...... 6.5 76.2 57.2 49.2 3.5 — 1926
inter-group transfer ...... — — — — — 01 0.1
Disposals . ..ccvvvvneeeinnnnns {1.4) _ .1 (18.5) _— — (20.0}
At 31 March 2000 ...... 417 842.6 379.5 251.5 1423 01 1,657.7
Net book value:
At 31 March 200G . ..... 164.0 2,074.2 1,546.1 276.8 35.1 536.3 4,632.5
At 31 March 1899........ 162.5 1,958.2 1,488.1 281.6 38.6 4189 4,347.9

Grants and contributions received relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of
fixed assets in crder to show a true and fair view. As a consequence, the net book value of fixed assets is
£67.0 milion (1989 — £61.5 million) lower than it would have been had this treatment not been adopted.

An analysis of land and buildings between freehold and long and short leasehold is not readily available at
31 March 2000. Pre-1974 assets comprise a pool of assets which was transferred to the company from
North West Water Authority, which it acquired in 1974 from its predecessors. No analysis by asset category
is available, The directors consider that the provision of the above information would incur expense out of
proportion to the benefit it would provide to shareholders.
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Included within infrastructure assets are infrastructure renewals as required by FRS 15. A summary of the
excess expenditure over depreciation is shown in the following table.

Infrastructure renewals

£m
Excess expenditure over depreciation at 1 April 1999 on maintaining the operating
capability Of the NEIWOIK ...c..v i e re v e s e e e resram et s e ae e eres e es 53.9
Expenditure on maintaining the network in the Year ..o e e, 81.5
BT o el o a TR (o g 14 = PPN (76.2)
Excess expenditure over depreciation at 31 March 2000 ....................ooociviinienninn, 58.2
Within tangible fixed assels are assels held under finance leases at the foliowing amounis:
2000 1999
£m £m
Cost; .
Operational SIUCILIES .....vvve et s e e eae bt e e eebean 250.8 250.8
Fixtures, fittings, t0ols and eGUIDMENT ... e 4.8 54
F R LY. - T o T U 255.6 256.2
Accumulated depreciation: :
Operalional SIUCTUPES ... e ee s 68.4) (63.7)
Fixtures, fittings, 100ls and aqUIPMENT ... e (4.5) 5.0y
AL 3T MACH .. e e et a e raan (72.9) (68.7)

J Net book value:

! OPEralioNal SITUCIUNES 1 oviriieeri e e vt s i et re et e raa e e rs s e rearsarraaas 182.4 187.1
Fixtures, fittings, tools and eqUIDMEM ..., 0.3 0.4
F o e IV T o o O S RO 182.7 187.5
The depreciation charge for the year for assets held under finance leases is £4.7 million (1999 — £4.8
million).

2000 1999
£m £m
Capital commitments:
Contracted but not provided fOr ..o 183.8 349.7
11. Fixed asset investments
Investments
£m
Group
Cost:
AL 1 Aprl 1999 and 31 March 2000......... S PP SOPP 0.3
Shares in
subsidiary Other
undertakings  investments Total
£m £m £m
Company
Cost:
At 1 Aprit 1999 and 31 March 2000............. erirraa 0.1 0.3 0.4
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Details of subsidiary and associated undertakings, all of which are unlisted and registered in England and

Wales, are:
- Nature of
" Subsidiary undertakings Description of holding Proportion held business
North West Water Finance pic Ordinary shares of £1 each 100% Raising finance
Nature of
Associated undertakings Description of holding Proportion held business
WRC PIC oo, ‘A’ Ordinary shares of £1 each 9.84% Water and
wastewater
research
8% convertible unsecured 26.54%
loan stock 2014
Paypoint Network Limited..... Ordinary shares of 1 pence each 0.06% Cash collection
service
‘F' ordinary shares of 1 pence 1.23%
) gach
12. Debtors
Group Company
2000 1999 2000 1099
£m £m £m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors...cooeiv e 130.2 133.9 130.2 133.9
Amounts owed by Group undertakings .............. 56.3 98.1 56.3 98.1
Other debtors....ccooe i 9.8 15.3 9.8 156.3
Prepayments and accrued income.............c.oveee. 111.5 95.0 100.1 94.3
307.8 342.3 305.4 341.6

Amounts owed by Group undertakings represent amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary
undertakings which includes a £40.0 million floating rate loan (1999 — £40.0 million).

13. Creditors: amounts failing due within one year

Group Company
2000 1999 2000 1999
£m £m £m £m
0 ot S S OO U 30.4 100.1 30.4 1001
Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings......... 354.9 134.2 21.0 16.1
Obligations under finance leases — external ....... 0.4 1.7 04 1.7
Trade credifors ..o v 9.0 21.2 8.0 21.2
Amounts owed to group undertakings................ 60.0 169.2 321.6 286.7
DIVIENAS 1t vave et i ettt e e g e 124.7 122.3 124.7 122.3
Other creditors ..o 1.6 1.9 1.6 1.9
Taxation and social SecUIty .......ovveeeciiiininreeenenn, 6.8 30.6 6.8 30.6
Accruals and deferred inCome. ..., 295.2 321.1 295.2 3211
883.0 902.3 880.7 901.7
e ——— e — P—————————
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14. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

) Group Company

2000 1999 2000 1999

£m &m £m £m

[T gL S SO PRSP ST 954.0 551.6 521.2 551.6
Obligations under finance 16ases ......coeeevveneene. 129.6 200.0 189.6 200.0
Amounts owed 1o group undertakings................ 515.6 790.0 952.4 790.0
Other credifors ..o, 7.0 55 7.0 55
Deferred grants and contributions {(note 15)........ 580.6 558 G60.6 558

1,740.8 1,602.9 1,740.8 1,602.9

15. Deferred grants and contributions

£m
Grodp and company
AT A 000 i e e e e et e e rreaaa i reae 55.8
RECEIVEA I ThE YA . eeee vt e et e r et s e r s s e s e r e bbb e reaes 7.2
Profit and 0SS G000 ... e e et i e e ety {2.4)
AL 3T March 2000 ...t er e e 60.6
16. Provisions for liabilities and charges
Restructuring
Cm
Group and company
AL T ADIT T8 1o e et a et et 3.1
1T PPN {6.3)
Profit and 1088 AC00UNT. ... .ot e et et et e 8.6
At31March 2000 ..o, U 54
———————
17. Borrowings
2000 1939
£m £m
Bank overdrafts and temporary Domowings......ccoiieieiiii e e 375.8 172.5
= (Al e L T U USSP U ST RRTOTOUR PP 1,504.0 1,441.7
BN aN0E BASES. 1 v ivitiiret e rei e et v et e e e ere e e rn ettt e e s 200.0 201.7

2,079.6 1,815.9
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Repayments fall due as follows:

i Year 2000 Year 1999
i £m £m
After Ve YBAIS. v 2006+ 1,440.6 2005+ 1,4147
From four t0 five Y8ars .....oci e e ivevnees 2005 36.2 2004 33.9
From three to four years....cocciivren i 2004 34.0 2003 30.9
From two to three years ........cccovevvn e vciiirrnnee. 2003 66.6 2002 31.3
From one {0 tW0 Yars ...c.o..covvvveeriiieviiienereveenens 2002 95.8 2001 30.8
After more than one year.........oceeeivevciennirenenen, 1,673.2 1,541.6
WIthin 0N Year .....cvviveeerie e, 2001 406.4 2000 274.3
2,079.6 7 1,815.9

Loans repayable by instalments partly after five years comprise bank and cther loans repayable between
2006 and 2053. interest rates range from 4.88 per cent to 14.83 per cent on £1,276.1 milfion and are at
floating rates on £803.5 miliion.

Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings

The Group had available committed bank facilities of £545 million {1999 — £415 miltion} of which £545
milion was unutilised at 31 March 2000 (1989 ~ £415 million). The amounts currently unutilised expire in
mgore than two years.

Taking into account off balance sheet instruments, net debt can be analysed as follows:

Weighted average Weighted average
interest rate at which period for which interest
Borrowings at 31 March borrowings are fixed is fixed
2000 1899 2000 1999 2000 1999
£m £m % % Years Years
Fixed rate borrowings
—sterling.....ccocoeereee 1,276.1 972.3 6.9 8.6 6.6 8.6
Fleating rate
borrowings — sterling 782.8 805.3

Floating rate parent
undertaking loan —
sterling ...veovvvereeenne, 20.7 38.3

2,079.6 1,815.9
Floating rate parent
undertaking loan —
sterling eevvviinen (40.0) (40.0)
Cash at bank ........... {17.6) —

Net debt at 31 March 2,022.0 1,775.9

Floating rate borrowings are based on LIBOR.

Financial instruments and risk management

The primary financial risks faced by the Group are exchange rate risk and interest rate risk. The Board has
reviewed and agreed policies for managing each of these risks as summarised below, The Board has also
approved all of the classes of financial instruments used by the Group. The Group’s treasury function,
which is authorised to conduct the day-to-day treasury activities of the Group, reports at [east annually to
the Board.
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The Group uses a wide variety of financial instruments, including derivatives, 1o raise finance for its
operations and to manage the risks arising from those operaticns.

The Group borrows in the major global debt markets in a range of currencies at both fixed and floating rates

of interest, using derivatives where appropriate to generate the desired effective currency profile and
interest basis.

Under an interest rate swap, the Group agrees with another party to exchange at specific intervals the
difference bsetween fixed rate and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed
notional principal amount. The notional principal of these instruments reflects the extent of the Group's

involvernent in the instruments, but does not represent its exposure to credit risk which is assessed by
reference to the fair value.

Under a curency rate swap, the Group agrees with another party to exchange the principal amount of two
currencies together with interest amounts in the two currencies agreed by reference to a specific interest
rate basis and the principal amount. The principal of these instruments reflects the extent of the Group’s
involverment in the instruments, but does not represent its exposure to credit risk which is assessed by
reference fo the fair value.

All transactions are undertaken to manage the risks arising from underlying business activities and no
speculative trading is undertaken. The counterparties to these instruments generally consist of financial
institutions and other bodies with good credit ratings. Although the Group is potentially exposed to credit
loss in the event of non-performance by counterparties, such credit risk is controlled through credit rating
reviews of the counterparties and limiting the total amount of exposure to any cne party. The Group does
not believe it is exposed to any material concentrations of credit risk.

As noted above, the Group uses derivatives to manage its exposure 10 currency risk on its borrowings.
Accordingly, the Group has no material unhedged foreign currency exposures.

Financial instruments utilised by the Group can be summarised as follows:

a) Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps are used solely to manage floating rate borrowings in order to reduce the financiat risk of
the Group from potential future changes in medium term interest rates.

b) Financial futures

Financial futures are used to manage the Group's exposure 1o possible future changes in short term
interest rates.

¢} Forward contracts

The Group generally hedges foreign exchange transaction exposures up to one year forward. Hedges are
put in place using forward contracts at the time that the forecast exposure becomes reasonably certain.
d) Currency swaps

The Group uses currency swaps to hedge currency exposure where debt is raised in one currency to fund
in a different currency.
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Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and
information about the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and therefore cannot be determined precisely.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

2000 2000

Book Current

value value

£m £m

Short term debt and current portion of long term debt........ccccivieieii 406.4 406.4
Long tarm bt .o e 1,673.2 1,610.1
2,079.6 2,018.5

R R e | Loy L 19 T - 5.0
Foreign exchange contracts and SWaPS «...ueeceeeiieniiitennirreerese et senannns - 78.6
Total financial instruments........................... T PO P PO 2,079.6 2,100.1

Fair values have been estimated using the following methods and assumptions:

Current assets and liabilities

Financial instruments included within current assets and liabilities (excluding cash and borrowings) are
generally short term in nature and accordingly their fair values approximate to their book values.

Long term receivables and liabilities

The fair values of financial instruments included within long term receivables and liabilities {excluding
borrowings) are based on discounted cash flows using appropriate market interest rates.

Net borrowings and non-equity interests (excluding foreign exchange contracts)

The carrying values of cash and short term borrowings and current asset investments approximated to their
fair values because of the short term maturity of these instruments. The fair value of quoted long term
borrowings and guaranteed preferred securities is based on year end mid-market quoted prices. The fair
value of other long term borrowings is estimated by discounting the future cash flows to net present values
using appropriate market interest rates prevailing at the year end.

Currency and interest rate swaps

The Group enters into currency and interest rate swaps in order to manage its foreign currency and interest
rate exposures. The fair value of these financial instruments was estimated by discounting the future cash
flows to net present values using appropriate market rates prevailing at the year end. The carrying and fair
values of currency and interest rate swaps include the related accrued interest receivables and payables.

Hedges

Unrecognised gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities for which hedge accounting has been
used at the balance sheet date were £25.3 million and £108.9 million respectively (1899 — £52. 1 million and
£23.6 million).

The Group anticipates that £3.1 milion of these gains and £5.5 million of these losses will be realised in the
forthcoming financial year (1999 — £25.2 million and £7.8 miliion). Of the unrecognised gains and losses on
hedges as at 1 April 1889, the net loss recognised in the pericd’s profit and loss account was £9.8 million.
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18. Called up share capital and share premium accounts

2000 1999
£m &m
Authorised share capital
650,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 @aCh .....ooiiviiiie i e, 650.0 650.0
223,437,000 preference shares of £1 @aCh....cccoooiiiviiiiciicin e, 223.4 2051
Allotted and fully paid share capita
431,830,000 ordinary shares of £1 aCh ........ovecvieviieeiiiiiieiiiice e, 431.9 431.9
223,437,000 preference shares of £1 @aCh.......ocovviiviiiiiioiinn e, 223.4 205.1
Share Premium BGCOUMNE «uuevvitoeriern e rirerree i reseererettesriasreerteersanricnn s rerssrssns £547.8 647.8

During the year, 18,300,000 non-voting non-redeemable preference shares were allotted for cash at
nominal value in order to reduce overall borrowings. The preference shares have no entitement to any
dividends paid by the company. Preference shareholders are not entitled to receive notice of, attend or vote
at, any general meeting of the company. However, preference shareholders receive priority to other classes
of shareholders on a winding up, liquidation or other return of capital to sharehalders of the company.

19. Profit and loss account

Group  Company

£m Em
At T AP 1980 . i 899.7 899.7
o) (1 (oL (a == OO 128.7 128.7
AL 31T MEICh 2000, ... et e b e it eaat e 1,028.4 1,028.4

As allowed by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the company has not presented its own profit and
loss account.

20. Pensions

The company participates in the United Utilities PLC's two funded defined benefit schemes — the United
Utilities Pension Scneme {UUPS) and the Electricity Supply Pension Scherne (ESPS), of which the ESPS is
closed to new employees. The asseis of these schemes are held in trust funds independent of United
Utilities PLC's finances.

For UUPS and ESPS, the pension cost under the accounting standard SSAP24 has been assessed in
accordance with the advice of a firm of actuaries, William M Mercer Limited, using the projected unit
method. For this purpose, the actuanal assumptions adopted are based upon investment growth of 6.5 per
cent per annum, pay growth of 4.5 per cent per annum and increases to pensions in payment and deferred
pensions of 3 per cant per annum. The actuarial value of the assets was taken as 89 per cent of the market
value of the assets as at 31 March 1998,

The last actuarial valuations of the two schemes were carried out as at 31 March 1988. The combined
market value of United Utilities PLC’s share of the assets of the two schemes at the valuation date was
£1,718.5 million. Using the assumptions adopted for SSAP24 the combined actuarial value of the assets
represented 115 per cent of the value of the accrued benefits after allowing for expected future earnings
increases. in deriving the pension costs under SSAP24, the surplus in the schemes is being spread over
the future working lifetime of the existing members.

For ESPS, the employer’s contributions have been assessad in accordance with the advice of a firm of
actuaries, Bacon and Woodrow, using different assumptions and methods to those described above. For
UUPS, the employer's contributions have been assessed in accordance with the advice of Wiliam M
Mercer Lirnited using the assurnptions and methods described above.
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The company also operates a series of unfunded, unapproved retirement benefit schemes. The cost of the
unfunded, unapproved retirement benefit schemes is included in the total pension cost, on a basis
consistent with S5AP24 and the assumptions set out above.

The total pension cost for the period was £8.5 million (1999 — £10.3 million).

21. Operating leases

Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings  machinery buildings  machinery

2000 2000 1999 1899
£m £m £m £m
The company is committed to making the
following payments during the year:
Leases which expire: .
WILNIN ONE YEAY .viciiiivii e e 0.2 0.3 1.4 0.3
Between two and five years........ocevvvevini e 0.4 06 09 24
AFter Ve YBArS.. . . 0.2 — 0.7 —
1.5 0.9 3.0 2.7
e — 1 1 e ——

22. Related party transactions

The company has disclosed transactions with its ultimate holding company and associated companies
within the United Utilities Group in note 7 of the Regulatory Accounts.

23. Ultimate parent undertaking

The accounts of the company are consolidated in the Group accounts of the ultimate parent undertaking,
United Utilities PLC, a company registered in Englanc and Wales. Copies of the accounts of United Uiilities
PLC may be obtained from the Company Secretary, United Utilities PLC, PO Box 14, Birchwood
Boulevard, Warrington WA3 7WB.
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NORTH WEST WATER FINANCE PLC

North West Water Finance PLC was incorporated for an unlimited duration in England and Wales on
14 Qctober, 1996 with registered number 3263102 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of North West
Water Limited. The purpose of the company is to raise finance for the activities of North West Water
Limited. North West Water Finance PLC is a company limited by shares and operates under the
Companies Act 1985. North West Water Finance PLC has no subsidiary undertakings.

Board of Directors
The directors of North West Water Finance PLC and their functions within the company are as follows:

Name Function
Simon Batey Director
Martin Bradbury Direcior
John Roberts Director

None of the directors of North West Water Finance PLC performs activities outside the Group which are
significant with respect to the Group. ’

The business address of each of the directors is the company's registered office which is PO Box 14, 410
Birchwood Boulevard, Birchwood, Warrington WA3 7GA.
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Capitalisation and Indebtedness of North West Water Finance PLC

The following table, which has been extracted from the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March, 2000, sets out the capitalisation and indebtedness of North West Water Finance PLC at
31 March, 2000.

£'000

Short Term Debt:
Short term debt (inCluding overdrafts) ... e 332,821.7
Current portion of long term debl ... e e —

Total Short tarm et .. ...ttt 332,821.7
Long Term Debt:

Long termn debt, net of current portion ... 306,768.4
Total 10NG 1M BBt ... ittt 396,768.4
Shareholders’ Funds:®

Called Up Share CAPIAL.... ...ttt e 50.0

Profit and 1088 ACCOUNT L.... e e et e e e ee s ae e rre e 18.7
Total shareholders’ fUNGS® ........ovvvvereeeeeereveeeeeeseeeens s 68.7

e —

Total capitalisation@©® et e e an—era— et e et reaaa 306,837.1

Notes:

(a) As at 20 August, 2000, the total short term debt was approximately £372 million and the total long term debt was approximately
£445 million.

{b) Asat 31 March, 2000, the authorised share capital of North West Water Finance PLC was £100,000 comprising 100,000 ordinary
shares of £1 nominal each. The allotted, called up and fully paid share capital of North West Water Finance PLC was £50,000
comprising 50,000 ordinary shares of £1 nomingl sach.

(c) As at 20 August, 2000, shareholders' funds totalled epproximately £69,000.

(d) Asat31 March, 2000, approximately £333 million of North West Water Finance PLC's debt was jointly guaranteed by North West
Water Limited and United Utilities PLC and approximately £397 million of North West Water Finance PLC's debt was guaranteed
by North West Water Limited only.

{e) As at 31 March, 2000, there were nc material contingent liabiliies and there was no secured indebtedness.

{h Save as disclosed above, there has been no material change in the capitalisation, indebtedness or contingent liabilities of North
West Water Finance PLC since 31 March, 2000.
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TAXATION

The following is a summary of the Issuers’ understanding of certain aspects of United Kingdom
current law and Inland Revenue practice relating to the taxation of the Notes. Some parts of the
summary may not apply to certain classes of person (such as dealers). Prospective Noteholders
who may be subject to tax in a jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom or who are unsure as
to their particular tax position should seek their own professional advice.

Withholding tax: payments of interest made before 1 April, 2001

1.

The Notes will constitute “guoted Eurobonds” within the meaning of section 124 of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 (the “Act”) as long as they carry a right to interest, continue to be in
bearer form and are “listed on a recognised stock exchange” for the purposes of that section. The
London Stock Exchange is currently recognised for these purposes. Payments of interest on Nates
which constitute quoted Eurcbonds (“Eurcbond Nates”) may be made without withholding on
account of United Kingdom income tax where:

{a) payment is made through a paying agent at its office outside the United Kingdom; or

{b) the beneficial cwner of the Notes and tﬁe interest therecn is not resident in the United Kingdom;
or

(c) the Notes are held in a “recognised clearing system” (Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg
are each a recognised clearing systermn for this purpose),

and, in the case of {b) and (c), certain other administrative conditions imposed by regulations made
under the Act have been satisfied.

In alt other cases an amount must be withheld from payments of interest on the Notes on account of
income tax at the lower rate (currently 20 per cent.), subject to any direction to the contrary by the
Inland Revenue under an applicable double taxation treaty,

Where a person in the United Kingdom acting in the course of a trade or profession, other than by
means solely of clearing a chegue or arranging for the clearing of a chegue, either:

(a) acts as custodian of a Eurobond Note and receives interest on the Eurcbond Note, directs that
interest on the Eurcbond Note be paid to another person or consents 1o such payment; or

fo) collects, receives or secures payment of interest on & Eurcbond Note for a Noteholder or a
Couponholder whether by means of Coupons or otherwise,

that person {a “collecting agent™ will be entitled to withhold sums on account of income tax at the
lower rate unless:

() the Eurobond Note is held in a recognised clearing system and the collecting agent either:
(A) pays or accounts for the interest directly or indirectly to the recognised clearing system; or
(B} is acting as depuositary for the recognised clearing system; or

{il the person beneficially entitled o the interest is not resident for tax purposes in the United
Kingdom and beneficially owns the Eurcbond Note; or

{i} the interest arises to trustees not resident for tax purposes in the United Kingdom of certain
discretionary or accurmulation trusts (where, inter afia, none of the beneficiaries of the trust is
resident in the United Kingdom); or

(v} the person beneficially entitled to the interest is eligible for cne of a number of specified reliefs
from tax in respect of the interest; or

(v} the interest falls to be treated as the income of, or of the government of, a sovereign power or of
an international organisation; or
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{vi} the Eurobond Note and the interest are beneficially owned by a person falling into one of certain
specified categories, or one of certain other circumstances applies, in each case as prescribed by
regulations made under the Act; this would apply, for example, to Eurobond Notes held in an
individual savings account, a personal equity plan, a pension funds pooling scheme or a
superannuation fund.

Inthe case of each of the above exceptions (except ()(B)), further administrative conditions imposed by
the reguiations referred to above may have to be satisfied for the relevant exception to be available.

Withholding tax: payments of interest made on or after 1 Aprif, 2001

Under provisions contained in the Finance Act 2000, for so long as the relevant Notes are listed on a
recognised stock exchange there will be no obligation upon any person by or through whom a payment of
interest is made in respect of those Notes (including the Issuer or any paying agent or any collecting agent)
to deduct or withhold any sum on account of United Kingdom income tax from that payment of interest.
This legislation has effect for payments of interest made on or after 1 April, 2001, It is proposed to introduce
new provisions from the same date enabling the United Kingdom Inland Revenue to obtain information
about United Kingdom savings income of individuals and, in certain circumstances, to exchange tax payer
information with the tax authorities of other jurisdictions,

Withholding tax: general

1. Where interest has been paid under deduction of United Kingdom income tax, Noteholders who are
not resident in the United Kingdom may be able to recover all or part of the tax deducted under an
appropriate provision in an applicable double taxation treaty.

2. Payments of interest on amounts of principal which are expressed and intended to be outstanding for
less than twelve months may in all circumstances be made without withholding or deduction for or on
account of United Kingdom income tax.

Tax by direct assessment

Interest on the Notes constitutes United Kingdom source income for tax purposes and, as such, may be
subject to income tax by direct assessment even where paid without withholding.

However, interest with a United Kingdom source wilt not be chargeable to United Kingdom tax or, if tax has
been withheld or deducted, to further United Kingdom tax in the hands of a Notehalder who is not resident
for tax purposes in the United Kingdom unless that Noteholder carries on a trade, profession or vocation in
the United Kingdom through a United Kingdom branch or agency in conneaction with which the interest is
received or to which the Notes are attributable. There are exemptions for interast received by certain
categories of agent {such as some brokers and investment managers).

United Kingdom Corporation Tax Payers

in general, Noteholders which are within the charge to UK corperation tax wiil be charged to tax on all
returns, profits or gains on, and fluctuations in value of, the Notes broadly in accordance with their statutory
accounting treatment. Such Noteholders will generally be charged to tax in each accounting period by
reference to interest {and discount) accrued in that period. Such Noteholders will also be obliged te bring
into account as income profits and losses caused by movements in the currency in which the Notes are
denominated against the currency in which, in accordance with “normal accounting practice”, the
Noeteholder accounts for the Notes.

Other United Kingdom Tax Payers
Taxation of Chargeable Gains

Individual holders of Notes may be subject to United Kingdom taxation of capital gains on a disposal or
redemption of Notes if they are resident or ordinarily resident in the United Kingdom or if they carry on a
trade in the United Kingdom through a branch ar agency to which the Notes are attributable. For individual
holders, the exemption from United Kingdom taxation on capital gains for “qualifying corporate bonds”
under Section 115 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 will, however, apply to the Notes if they,
inter afia, represent and have at all times represented a “normal commercial loan” for the purposes of that
exemption, are denominated in Sterling and in respect of which no provision is made for conversion into, or
redemption in, a currency other than Sterling. Any Notes constituting “relevant discounted securities” (as
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mentioned below) will be treated as “qualifying corporate bonds”. Where Notes are “qualifying corporate
bonds”, no chargeable gain and (normally) no allowable loss will arise on a disposal of such Notes.

Accrued Income Scheme

The provisions of the accrued income scheme (the “Scheme™) may apply to individuals transfering Notes
which bear interest, or {0 individuals o whorn such Notes are transferred. On a transfer of securities with
accrued interest the Scheme usually applies fo deem the transferor to receive an amount of income egual
to the accrued interest and to deem the transferee to obtain an equivalent credit to set off against the
deemed or actual interest he subsequently receives. However, where a Note constitutes a variable rate
security for the purposes of the Scheme, the amount of accrued income deemed to be received by a holder
of such a Note upon transfer will be such amount as the Inland Revenue decides is just and reasonable and
the transferee will not be entitled to any credit under the Scheme to get against any actual or deemed
interest that he receives or is deemed to receive. Broadly, a Note will not constitute a variable rate security
for these purposes if, throughout the period to redemption, it carries interest at a fixed rate, at a rate fixed by
reference to a standard published base rate or at a rate fixed by reference to a published index of prices.

Persons who are neither resident nor ordinarily resident in the United Kingdom and who do not carry on a
trade in the United Kingdom through a branch or agency to which the Notes are attributable will not
generally be subject to the provisions of these ruies.

Taxation of discount and premium

Where Notes are issued at an issue price of less than 100 per cent. of their principal amount, any payments
in respect of the accrued discount will not be made subject to any withholding or deduction on account of
United Kingdom income tax as long as they do not constitute payments in respect of interest. Such Notes
may, however, constitute “relevant discounted securities” for the purpose of Schedule 13 of the Finance
Act 1996, depending on the level of the discount. Where Notes constitute “relevant discounted securities”,
a holder of such Notes who is within the scope of United Kingdom income tax may be liable to United
Kingdoem income tax on any profit made on the sale or other disposal (including redemption) of such Notes,

Where Notes are issued with a redemption premium, as opposed o being issued at a discount, then any
such element of premiurm may constitute a payment of interest and, if 50, the provisions described above in
relaticn to withholding tax and tax by direct assessment will apply. If the premium does not constitute a

payment of interest then such notes may in any event constitute “relevant discounted securities” (as
mentioned above).

Proposed EU Withhoiding Tax Directive

In June 200Q the European Council agreed to amend earlier propaosals published in 1998 by the European
Commission regarding the taxation of savings income. The Gouncil no longer intends to require member
states to implement a withholding taix regime in relation to payments of interest. Subject to the fulfiiment of a
number of important conditions, the Council intends instead to require member states to introduce by
31 Decernber, 2002 an exchange of information system in relation to interest and similar income,
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

The Dealers have in a programme agresment dated 13 October, 1998 (as supplemented and amended
from time to time) (the “Programme Agreement”), agreed with the Issuers a basis upon which they or any of
them may from time to time agree to purchase Notes. Any such agreement will extend to those matters
stated under “Form of the Notes” and “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”. In the Programme Agreement,
the lssuers have agreed to reimburse the Dealers for certain of their expenses in connection with the
establishment of the Programme and the issue of Notes under the Programme and to indemnify the
Dealers against certain liabilities incurred by them in connection therewith.

Selling Restrictions
United States

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or scld
within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions
exempt from the registration requirerments of the Securities Act.

The Notes are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be coffered, sold or delivered within the
United States or its possessions or to a United States person, except in certain transactions permitted by
U.S. tax regulaticns. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 and regulations thereunder.

In connection with any Notes which are offered or sold outside the United States in reliance on an
exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided under Regulation S, each
Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be
required to represent and agree, that it will not offer, sell or deliver such Notes (i) as part of their distribution
at any time or (i) otherwise until 41 days after the completion of the distribution, as determined and certified
by the retevant Dealer or, in the case of an issue of Notes on a syndicated basis, the relevant lead manager,
of all Notes of the Tranche of which such Notes are a part, within the United States or to, or for the account
or benefit of, U.S, persons. Each Dealer has further agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the
Programme will be required to agree, that it will send to each dealer to which it sells any Notes during the
distribution compliance period a confirmation or other notice setting forth the restrictions on offers and
sales of the Notes within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons.

Until 40 days after the commencement of the offering of any Series of Notes, an offer or sale of such Notes
within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the
registration requirements of the Securities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance
with an available exemption from registration under the Securities Act.

Each issuance of index Linked Notes or Dual Currency Notas shall be subject to such additional U.S. selling
restrictions as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree as a term of the issuance and
purchase of such Notes, which additional selling restrictions shall be set out in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.

United Kingdom

Each Dealer has represented and agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programime will be
required to represent and agree that:

{ inrelation to Notes which have a maturity of one year or meore and which are to be listed on the
Official List, it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Notes to persons in the United
Kingdom prior to admission of such Notes to listing in accordance with Part IV of the Financial
Services Act 1986 (the “FSA”) except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in
acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes
of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will not resutt in an
offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities
Regulations 1995 (as amended) or the FSA;

(il in relation to Notes which have a maturity of one year or more and which are not to be listed on
the Official List, it has not offered or sold and, prior to the expiry of the period of six months from
the issue date of such Notes, will not offer or sell any such Notes to persons in the United
Kingdom except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding,
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managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses
or gtherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public
in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 (as
amendead);

{ii it has only issued or passed on and will only issue or pass on in the United Kingdom any
document received by it in connection with the issue of any Notes, other than, in relation to any
Notes to be listed on the Official List, any document which consists of or any part of listing
particulars, supplementary listing particulars or any other document required or permitted 1o be
published by listing rules under Part [V of the FSA, t0 a person who is of a kind described in Article
11(3) of the Financial Services Act 1986 (Investment Advertisernerits) (Exemptions) Order 1996

{as amended) or is a person to whom such document may otherwise lawfully be issued or passed
on; and

{iv) it has complied and will comply with alt applicable provisions of the FSA with respect to anything
done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Japan

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Secutities and Exchange Law of Japan (the
“Securities and Exchange Law”) and each Dealer has agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the
Programme will be required to agree that it will not offer or sell any Notes, directly or indirectly, in Japan or
to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person resident in
Japan, including any corporation or other entity organised under the laws of Japan), or to others for re-
offering or rasale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to a resident of Japan except in compliance with the
Securities and Exchange Law and any other applicable laws and regulations of Japan.

Germany

In connection with the initial placement of any Motes in Germany, each Dealer has agreed and each further
Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree that it will offer and sell Nates (i) unless
otherwise provided in the relevant subscription agreement or the applicable Pricing Supplement in the case
of an issue made on a syndicated basis, only for an aggregate purchase price per purchaser of at least DM
80,000 (or its equivalent in euro or any other currency) or such other amount as may be stipufated from time

to time by applicable German law or (i) as may otherwise be permitted in accordance with appiicable
German law.

General

Each Dealer has agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree
that it will (to the best of its knowledge and belief) comply with all applicable securities laws and regutations
in force in any jurisdiction in which it purchases, offers, sells or delivers Notes or possesses or distributes
this Offering Circuiar and will obtain any consent, approval or permission required by it for the purchase,
offer, sale or delivery by it of Notes under the laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction to which it is
subject or in which it makes such purchases, offers, sales or deliveries and neither the relevant Issuer, the

Guarantor (where the relevant [ssuer is NWW) nor any of the other Dealers shall have any responsibility
therefor.

Neither the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) nor any of the Dealers
represents that Notes may at any time lawfully be sold in compliance with any applicable registration or
other requiremens in any jurisdiction, or pursuant to any exempticn available thereunder, or assumes any
responsibility for facilitating such sale.

With regard to each Tranche, the relevant Dealer will be required to comply with such other restrictions as

the refevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer shall agree and as shall be set out in the applicable Pricing
Supplement,
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Authorisation
The establishment of the Programme and the issue of the Notes have been duly authorised by:

) a resolution of the Board of Directors of United Utilities PLC, dated 26 May, 1998 and by a
resolution of the Financing Committee of United Utilities PLC, dated 5 Cctober, 1998;

{i)y aresolution of the Board of Directors of NORWER ple, dated 24 June, 1998 and by a resolution
of the Financing Cormmittee of NCRWEB plc, dated 5 Cctaober, 1998; and

{il a resolution of the Board of Directors of NWW, dated 5 October, 1998,

The granting of the Guarantee has been duly authorised by the Board of Directors of the Guarantor dated
17 June, 1898 and by a resolution of the Financing Committee of the Guaranter, dated 5 October, 1998.

The updates of the Programme were duly authorised by:

i} resolutions of the Board of Directors of United Utilities PLC dated 28 September, 1999 and
14 September, 2000;

(i) resolutions of the Board of Directors of NORWEB pic, dated 29 September, 1988 and
15 September, 2000;

{iy resolutions of the Board of Directors of NWW, dated 29 September, 1999 and 15 September,
2000; and

(iv) resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Guarantor, dated 14 September, 1999 and
14 September, 2000.

Listing of Notes on the Official List

The listing of Notes on the Official List will be expressed as a percentage of their nominal amount (excluding
accrued interest). It is expected that each Tranche of Notes which is to be admitted to listing on the Official
List and admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange will be admitted separately as and when
issued, subject only to the issue of a Global Note or Notes initially representing the Notes of such Tranche.,
The listing of the Programme in respect of Notes is expected to be granted on or around 4 Cctober, 2000,

Documents Available

So long as Notes are capable of being issued under the Programme, copies of the following documents
will, when published, be available from the registered office of each Issuer and the Guarantor and from the
specified office of the Paying Agent for the time being in London:

iy the Memorandum and Articles of Association of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor;

(i) the consolidated statutory annual audited financial statements of United Utilities PLC and
NORWEB plc in respect of the financial years ended 31 March, 1899 and 31 March, 2000, the
non-consolidated statutory annual audited financial statements of the Guarantor in respect of the
financial year ended 31 March, 1989 and the consolidated statutory annual audited financial
statements of the Guarantor in respect of the financial year ended 31 March, 2000, and the non-
consclidated statutory annual audited financial statements of NWW in respect of the financial
years ended 31 March, 1999 and 31 March, 2000;

(iiy the most recently published audited annual financial statements of each of the Issuers and the
Guarantor and the most recently published unaudited interim financial statements {if any) of each
of the Issuers and the Guarantor;

{iv) the Programme Agreement, the Agency Agreement, the Trust Deed and the forms of the Global
Notes, the Notes in definitive form, the Receipts, the Couponsg and the Talons;

(v} a copy of this Offering Circular;
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(vi) all reports, letters and other documents, balance sheets, valuations and statements by any expert
any part part of which is extracted or referred to in this Offering Circular;

{viiy any future offering circulars, prospectuses, inforrnation memoranda and supplements including
Pricing Supplements (save that a Pricing Supplement relating to an unlisted Note will only be
available for inspection by a holder of such Note and such holder must produce evidence
satisfactory to the Paying Agent as to its holding of Notes and identity) to this Offering Circular
and any other documents incorporated herein or therein by reference; and

{viiiy in the case of each issue of listed Notes subscribed pursuant to a subscription agreement, the
subscription agreement (or equivalent docurment).

Clearing Systems

The Notes have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. The
appropriate Common Code and ISIN for each Tranche of Notes allocated by Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplerment. The relevant [SIN and commaon code
will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. if the Notes are to clear through an additional or

alternative clearing system the appropriate information will be specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.

Significant or Material Change

Save as disclosed in this Offering Circular, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading
position of each of the lssuers and the Guarantor since 31 March, 2000 and there has been no material

adverse change in the financial position or prospects of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor since
31 March, 2000.

Litigation

Save as disclosed in this Offering Circular on page 51, none of the Issuers or the Guarantor is or has been
invalved in any legal or arbitration proceedings (including any proceedings which are pending or threatened
of which any of the Issuers or the Guarantor is aware) which may have or have had in the 12 months

preceding the date of this document a significant effect in the financial position of each of the Issuers or the
Guarantor.

Auditors

The auditors of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor are KPMG Audit Pic, chartered accountants and
registered auditor. KPMG Audit Ple has audited the acceunts of United Utilities PLC, NORWEB pic and
North West Water Limited, without qualification, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
in the United Kingdom for each of the three years ended 31 March, 2000. KPMG Audit Plc has audited the
accounts of NWAW, without qualification, in accordance with generally accepted audtttng standards in the
United Kingdom for each of the two years ended 31 March, 2000.

KPMG Audit Pic has given and not withdrawn its consent to the inclusion of references fo its reports in the
form and context in which they appear and has authorised the contents of that part of the Listing Particulars
for the purpases of section 152(1)(e} of the Financial Services Act 1986.

European Monetary Union

The third stage of European econamic and meonetary union commenced on 1 January, 1899 when the
value of the eurc as against the currencies of the member states participating in the third stage was
irrevocably fixed and the euro became a currency in its own right. With effect from 1 January, 2002 the
participating member currencies will cease to exist.

Banking Act 1987 (Exempt Transactions) Regulations 1997

Notes (including Notes denominated in sterling) in respect of which the issue proceeds are to be
accepted by the relevant Issuer in the United Kingdom and which are issued pursuant to an
exempt transaction under regulation 13(1) or {3) of the Banking Act 1987 (Exempt Transactions)
Regulations 1997 {the “Regulations”) will constitute commercial paper, shorter term debt
securities or longer term debt securities (in each case as defined in the Regulations), as
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, in each case issued in accordance with
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regulations made under section 4 of the Banking Act 1987. None of the Issuers is an authorised
institution or a European authorised institution (as such terms are defined in the Regulations) and (in the
case of Notes issued by NWW)} repayment of the principal and payment of any interest or premium in
connection with such Notes will be guarantead by the Guarantor, which is not an authorised institution or a
European authorised institution.

In relation to any Notes which are issued pursuant to an exempt transaction under reguiation 13(3) of the
Reguiations where such Nates would fall within regulation 13{4)(a} of the Regulations, each of the Issuers
confirms that:

(a) as at the date hereof, it has complied with its obligations under the relevant rules (as defined in the
Regulations) in relation to the admission to and continuing listing of the Programme and of any
previous issues made under it and fisted on the same exchange as the Programme;

(b) it will have complied with its obligations under the relevant rules in relation to the admission to listing of
such Notes by the time when such Notes are so admitted; and

{c) as at the date hereof, it has not, since the last publication, if any, in compliance with the relevant rules
of information about the Programme, any previous issues made under it and listed on the same
exchange as the Programme, or any Notes falling within regulation 13{4)a) of the Regulations, having
made all reasonable enquiries, become aware of any change in circumstances which could
reasonably be regarded as significantly and adversely affecting its ability to mest its obligations as
issUer in respect of such Notes as they fall due.

Contracts {Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 (the “Act”) was enacted on 11 November, 1999 and
provides, inter afia, that persons who are not parties to a contract governed by the laws of England and
Wales may be given enforceable rights under such contract. Unless specifically provided in the applicable
Pricing Supplement to the contrary, this Programme expressly excludes the application of the Act to any
issue of Notes under the Programme.
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